
Oregon State Library Board  
Agenda Packet 

 

 
June 10, 2016  
Oregon State Library 
Salem, OR





 
 
 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 
 

Agenda and Meeting Minutes    1 
 

 
Reports of the State Librarian and Staff   14 

 
 
2017-2019 Budget Request      19 
 
 
Adoption of OAR 543                                                 21 
 
 
Library Services and Technology Act Advisory  
Council Recommendations      36 
 
 
Talking Book and Braille Advisory Council  
Recommendations      58 
 
 
Miscellaneous       64 
 
 
Correspondence        69 

 
 
 
 



 
 

Agenda and Meeting Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1



 
 
 
 
 
Contact:  MaryKay Dahlgreen 
  State Librarian 
  503-378-4367 
 
 
 
May 27, 2016 
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
 
The Oregon State Library Board will meet at the State Library in Salem on Friday June 
10, 2016 from 9:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.  Aletha Bonebrake of Baker City will chair the 
meeting.  
 
At the meeting on June 10th, the board will hold public hearings on proposed 
administrative rules and consider adoption of those rules. They will also consider 
recommendations of the Library Services and Technology Act Advisory Council and the 
Talking Book and Braille Library Advisory Council. An open forum is scheduled for 11:30 
a.m. Anyone may address the board on any topic at the open forum. 
 
Sign language interpretation will be provided for the public if requested prior to 48 
hours before the meeting; notice prior to 72 hours before the meeting is preferred.  
Handouts of meeting materials may also be requested in alternate formats prior to 72 
hours before the meeting. Requests may be made to Jessica Rondema at 503-378-
2464. 
 

  Kate Brown, Governor 
 

State Library 
250 Winter St. NE 

Salem, OR 97301-3950 
(503) 378-4243 

Fax (503) 588-7119 
 

 

 

2



  
OREGON STATE LIBRARY BOARD MEETING 

June 10, 2016 
Oregon State Library 

Room 103 
Salem, OR 

Aletha Bonebrake, Chair 
 

Agenda 
 
 
9:00 a.m. Approval of the Minutes of the April 20, 2016 Meeting Bonebrake 
 
9:05 Reports of Board Chair and Members Bonebrake 
  Nominating Committee Report Malkin 
 
9:30 Public Hearing for OAR 543 (State Library Board) Bonebrake 
 
10:00 Public Hearing on OAR 543 (Government Information Services) Bonebrake 
 
10:30 Staff Reports  
 
11:30 Open Forum** Bonebrake 
 
Noon  Lunch 
   
1:00 New Business:  
 2017-2019 Budget Request (p. 19) Dahlgreen/Range 
 Adoption of OAR 543 (p. 21) Bonebrake 

 Library Services and Technology Act Advisory Council  
Recommendations (p. 36) Ibsen/Westin 

 Talking Book and Braille Advisory Council  
 Recommendations (p. 58) Westin 
   
   
3:00 Adjournment Bonebrake  
 

 

** Any person may address the Oregon State Library Board at this meeting on any topic.   

 

 

NOTE:  The times of all agenda items are approximate and subject to change. 
 
 

3



 
 
 

Upcoming Board Meeting Dates and Locations 
 

 

• August 26th at the Oregon State Library in Salem 

 

• October 28th at the Independence Public Library in Independence 

 

• January 19th and 20th at the Oregon State Library in Salem 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4



 
 
 

Oregon State Library Board Meeting 
April 20, 2016 

Riverhouse Convention Center, Bend 

Board members present: Ebonee Bell, Aletha Bonebrake, Leslie Hicks, Jennell Ives (designee of 
Salam Noor), Ann Malkin, Jennie Tucker, Satish Upadhyay. Absent: Dacia Johnson, Sam Hall. 

Guests present: None. 

Staff present: MaryKay Dahlgreen, Margie Harrison. 

Recorder: Jessica Rondema. 

Chair Aletha Bonebrake called the meeting to order at 9:03 a.m.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Tucker pointed out an error in the minutes from the January 8th board meeting. Rondema will correct 
the error.   

Bonebrake noted that the minutes state that Shawn Range will be putting together the budget 
committee, but it has not happened yet. 

Tucker moved to approve the minutes from the January 8, 2016, board meeting as corrected. 
Malkin seconded. The motion passed unanimously.  

INTRODUCTIONS 

The board members introduced themselves. Satish Upadhyay is new to the State Library board. He is 
originally from Nepal, and has been an Oregon state employee for 28 years. He is now the 
Administrative Services Division Chief at the Department of Forestry.  

Jennell Ives attended the board meeting as a designee of Salam Noor from the Department of 
Education. She has been in accelerated learning for six years, and in education for 25 years. She is 
currently the lead for Standards and Instructional Support. Ives is the temporary designee, as Desiree 
Kiesel will be Salam Noor’s regular designee. 

Dahlgreen expressed her appreciation for having state employees with valuable perspectives on the 
board. Upadhyay’s background in state government will serve us well. Dahlgreen was also grateful to 
Ives for stepping in to represent the Department of Education.  

REPORTS OF BOARD CHAIR AND MEMBERS  

Executive Committee Report  

The Executive Committee met on March 28, 2016. They heard the State Librarian’s update and 
developed the agenda for today’s meeting.  

Bonebrake congratulated us for the wonderful feedback we have received from our patrons.  

Other Board Reports 

5



Bonebrake reported that Eastern Oregon is experiencing some fallout from the occupation in Malheur 
earlier this year. Baker County Library District also has a local option levy to restore the portion of 
the budget that Measure 5 took away. Library Director Perry Stokes gathered endorsements from both 
political committees. Bonebrake is hoping the levy will pass. The Library of Eastern Oregon (LEO) 
board will be losing Marie Baldo to retirement. They are currently rolling out a large Art Place 
America grant. LEO was founded in the late 1990s, and included libraries such as Lakeview, Hood 
River, The Dalles, Wallowa County, Ontario, and others. These regions are poor with regard to taxes. 
Membership fees go toward shared databases and Libraries to Go. They also receive grants for 
programming. Additionally, Baker County Library District barely complied with the state filing for 
membership. They discussed whether the friends and the foundation should be a single entity or two 
separate entities, and compiled a report of the findings. They decided that they needed to be separate, 
primarily due to mission. Bonebrake will send this report to Dahlgreen and the board.  

Dahlgreen explained that even the smallest libraries have foundations to raise funds for capital 
projects and large fundraising campaigns. It is helpful to have a foundation group to reassure people 
that large donations will not be spent on operations. Malkin explained that Todd Dunkelberg at Bend 
Public Library holds Library Family meetings involving the friends and the foundation, in order to 
help them work in harmony. Malkin will ask Dunkelberg to share some documents with us. Upadhyay 
mentioned that friends and foundations are working toward the same goal of ensuring the library’s 
survival. The problem seems to be communication.  

Satish Upadhyay is a frequent user of three libraries in Washington County: Tualatin Public Library, 
Tigard Public Library, and the Beaverton City Library. He will be a more active user, now that he is 
on the board.   

Hicks and her children participated in spring break activities at the Independence Public Library. This 
library does not have a foundation, but does have a friends group. They are doing a very good job 
reaching out to the children of migrant workers, using Ready to Read funds.   

Dahlgreen gave a brief explanation of the Ready to Read grants, which are non-competitive grants 
based on 80% population (children aged 0 – 14) and 20% square mileage. This is the only money that 
the state provides to libraries for literacy, which consists of early learning and summer reading. There 
is now a minimum grant amount of $1,000. Proposed changes to Ready to Read include changing the 
name to Reading for Success, raising the age limit to include children 15 – 17, and including after-
school programs during the school year. The bill to make these changes did not pass in the last 
session. We have submitted a legislative concept to try to pass it this year. The Oregon Library 
Association (OLA) is interested in increasing the amount of money per child with this bill. The 
question is, do we move forward with the policy changes if there is no money attached to it?  

Bell reported that her Great Stories Club grant will come to an end in May. She did not reapply for a 
new grant, as she would have needed to submit an application in the middle of completing this first 
grant. She is interested in putting themes together for the Great Stories Club.  

Malkin reported that she just returned from the Public Library Association (PLA) annual meeting in 
Denver. Deschutes Public Library is looking to make changes to the building, so they are exploring 
alternatives and costs with an architectural firm. They also finished their first teen literature 
conference, with about 12 young adult authors for a festival of literature. They are in the middle of 
their community reads program, A Novel Idea. The book is Euphoria, by Lily King. They have 
programs that range from mask-making to book discussions. The final Author! Author! event will 
feature Alice Hoffman as a fundraiser for the library. They are about $17,000 in the black due to these 
events, sponsored by the foundation.  

6



PLA is a division of the American Library Association. Many sessions for the conference were 
focused on the Harwood process and the Aspen Institute. These are tools to find out what the 
community needs and how the library can provide support. The Multnomah County Library director 
is currently PLA president. 

Ives reported that there are big changes in education currently that will affect schools and 
communities across the state. The Every Student Succeeds Act is a huge shift for education, which 
has been operating under the No Child Left Behind Act for a long time. This is an opportunity to think 
differently and more broadly about education. Salam Noor has been visiting communities and holding 
forums about designing the new accountability system. Early Learning hubs are trying to hook 
together child care providers, parents, communities with the school system. The hubs are very locally 
drive by individuals. It will be important to figure out how to replicate those changes on a larger scale. 
The Governor has identified graduation as a primary concern. She will be hiring a new education 
innovation officer. Access to library services can be a challenge when taking college courses in high 
school. 

Tucker reported that Union County has small libraries, and the challenge is trying to keep them open. 
She has been attending advisory board meetings at different libraries. She is also a hospice volunteer 
and has been talking to the people at adult foster homes about the Talking Book and Braille Library. 
She introduces herself as a board member on the State Library Board and asks if there is anything she 
can do.  

Dahlgreen mentioned that Oregon has a variety of library types due to different funding. She would 
love to have stable and adequate funding for libraries across the state. Oregon has the highest per 
capital circulation in the country.  

REPORTS OF THE STATE LIBRARIAN  

Activities Since the Last Meeting 

Dahlgreen mentioned that Rondema has just completed her Masters of Business Administration with 
a Focus on Nonprofit Management from Marylhurst University. She had a new class every five weeks 
for eighteen months and did very well.  

Dahlgreen explained that HB 4050 to create a summer learning task force did not make it out of 
committee during the last legislative session. However, Dahlgreen has spoken with Lindsey Capps, 
our policy advisor, who will be working with Representative Smith Warner to move this forward. The 
State Library has been named as a partner.  

State Library staff have participated in a number of trainings over the past few months. We had two 
four-hour sessions of mandatory communications/conflict resolution training, which went reasonably 
well. Hicks will provide Dahlgreen with the contact information for the trainer that they have used at 
Nike, who also does work with nonprofits. One of our strategic imperatives is to cultivate staff 
strengths. Therefore, Dahlgreen made the Professional Development Committee into a workgroup. 
This group will work on orientation plans and help us determine ongoing training needs.  

We also had workplace safety and active shooter training from the State Police, as well as an all staff 
in-service day, which we have not done since anyone can remember. The Professional Development 
workgroup planned the event, which included guest speakers, ice breakers, presentations, and 
operational planning discussions. Speakers included Clyde Saiki of DHS and David Lewis, a 
researcher and Grand Ronde tribal member. The event received overwhelmingly positive reactions.  

7



Dahlgreen attended the Education Cluster meeting of the Legislative Commission on Indian Services 
in Lincoln City in March. She was able to meet the education staff from the tribal communities, 
including someone from the Burns Paiute tribe. Dahlgreen will be attending a training in May on 
treaty rights and working with tribal government.  

We have hired Melissa Krueck from Seattle as our new volunteer and fund development coordinator, 
who previously worked with the King County Department of Public Health. She will start working 
full time in May. Dahlgreen is very excited about having her join our staff.  

The Chief Information Officer is responsible for Enterprise Technology Services (ETS) in the State of 
Oregon. They have created Strategic Technology Officer (STO) positions. The State Library’s STO is 
Ben Tate, who asked that we be part of his portfolio. He works with education agencies. We have had 
several meetings with Tate and Tony Black of ETS. Dahlgreen is anticipating that we will need to ask 
for funding to transfer some of our technology activities to ETS. The legislature and Department of 
Administrative Services in interested in moving toward enterprise services when feasible. We would 
continue to have IT staff to help with desktop services, new projects, and other library-specific tasks. 
Dahlgreen would like to submit a policy package for the 2017-19 biennium, because it will initially be 
more expensive to move our services to ETS. This will be better for security as well. ETS will take 
care of servers, storage, email, and security. Tate is also willing to help with a strategic technology 
plan that would fit into our strategic plan. He is working with our IT staff to look at our current 
activities and next steps. We currently have three IT positions: one is vacant, one is the coordinator 
who has been with us for 30 years, and the last one is our new desktop support specialist. We may be 
repurposing these positions.  

Our Oregon Documents Repository, which is our online repository of publications from state 
agencies, was created in-house 10 or 15 years ago. Therefore, no one can fix it. Harrison has signed a 
contract for a hosted Digital Asset Management System, Islandora, by LYRASIS. We are currently 
planning the migration. This should also give us the opportunity to partner with state agencies that 
have collections as well. We will also be able to make our digitized Oregon Index accessible through 
this system.  

Dahlgreen recently visited the Rainier City Library. They had a library director for many years that 
did not take the local community needs into consideration. This person has now retired. The 
Superintendent of schools wants the school librarian to also be the city librarian. In addition, the 
Rainier school library has recently had issues with challenged books. ALA advocacy groups are 
working with the school librarian in Rainier.  

Dahlgreen also recently visited North Marion Community Library in Aurora, which is a volunteer 
library. Dahlgreen spoke to them about the need for funding and reminded them that every library in 
Oregon began as a small group meeting in a church basement. She promoted larger units of service, 
such as a district or combining with other libraries. We do not provide financial assistance to 
volunteer libraries, but we do provide consulting.  

Dahlgreen had lunch with Pam Pugsley, the interim director at Stayton Public Library. There was 
some controversy with their library director. They are looking for a new director and have received no 
applications so far.  

In addition, Dahlgreen visited the Driftwood Library in Lincoln City, where we did our strategic 
planning in August 2014.  

The Josephine Community Library in Josephine County is a private, non-profit organization, which 
was formed after the county closed the library and they could not get a district passed. It is a 
membership library, but if you cannot afford to pay, you can still use it. They have ten paid staff and 

8



300-400 volunteers in multiple branches. Earlier this year, the Illinois Valley branch in Cave Junction 
was broken into and trashed. They had insurance, but their deductible was $5,000, which is difficult 
for a small library. Fortunately, they were able to raise $11,000. Many from the library community 
stepped up to help.  

The Douglas County Library will be going out for a library district in the November election. This 
will be an uphill battle for them. They are currently part of the county government, but the 
commissioners have said they will no longer support the library in three years. The commissioners are 
in support of a district. The city of Roseburg has agreed to allow their members to vote in this 
election. Roseburg would take a cut. The Oregon Community Foundation and the Ford Family 
Foundation provided the Douglas County Library with bridge money to get them through until the 
election, which is extremely rare.  

Dahlgreen expressed a desire to have the board on the same schedule as our biennial strategic 
planning. She handed out a draft plan with a timeline of activities throughout this biennium and the 
next. Our budget needs to be submitted August 1st. The board chair signs the budget request. After we 
submit our budget in August, it goes to the Governor, and then the legislature.  

We have three types of planning: strategic plan, operational plan, and the budget. The board creates 
the strategic plan (our current plan is from August 2014 through June 2017). Last January, we began 
our operational planning, running until June of 2016. The staff creates the operational plan based on 
the strategic plan that the board has created. We are working on completing the operationalization of 
our four strategic imperatives: Focus on the Customer, Enhance Partnerships, Build Awareness of the 
State Library, and Cultivate Staff Strengths. We kicked off this next year of operational planning on 
April 1st. This plan will be implemented on July 1st. Four groups of staff are working on these four 
strategic imperatives.  

Dahlgreen proposed that the board start its strategic plan update in January 2017. It is unlikely that the 
board will need to create a completely new strategic plan. If the board updates the plan from January 
through March, then the staff can create the operational plan from April through June, before 
beginning in July. This is Dahlgreen’s recommendation.  

Malkin suggested that we create a board calendar or work plan to indicate which activities need to 
occur at each meeting during the year. Upadhyay has very detailed process at the Department of 
Forestry. He will share this with us. The LSTA grant guidelines have changed as well. Ready to Read 
appeals will now be brought to the October meetings.  

It is important for the board to look at the strategic plan every two years. Changes can easily be made 
within the operational plan. Additionally, we work with the Library Services and Technology Act 
Advisory Council and the library community to do a five-year plan for federal funding.  

Dahlgreen handed out a big picture document for activities at the State Library, including cross-
agency projects, board activities, training, and division projects.  

Dahlgreen discussed the recommendations that resulted from the brand audit we recently completed 
while contracting with the Coraggio group. In the RFP, we specified that we wanted to build capacity 
at the State Library, so our staff know how to conduct brand audits in the future.   

The recommendations were developed out of conversations with Coraggio and the Brand Audit team 
at the State Library. We were trying to determine what people think of us and what they would like to 
see from us. The Build Awareness operational planning group will be looking at these 
recommendations and determining how we can improve our brand awareness. We will also look at 
how we can best connect with the people that can benefit from our services. This group consisted of 

9



Jessica Rondema from Operations, Elke Bruton from Talking Books, Tamara Ottum from Library 
Support, Robby Pietz from Government Services, and Shawn Range, business manager. The group 
conducted interviews, a focus group, and sent out a survey. We were very pleased to receive 487 
survey responses. We also created a touchpoint map, illustrating that email, our website, and our 
physical space are our key touchpoints. User champions and our products were discovered to be high 
value touch points that were not on our original list. Newsletters, phone, and events are outlying touch 
points used by smaller groups of users. 

Coraggio made recommendations in the following six areas: better marketing and service 
coordination, brand messaging, brand structure, value creation and communication, physical space 
access improvements, and website excellence. The recommendation is that we create a unified brand. 
This will be a challenge, as we tend to think of ourselves in our separate divisions. Because our 
audiences are different, we need to have an all-inclusive message that relates to the users. We will 
also most likely be switching our name from the Oregon State Library to the State Library or the State 
Library of Oregon. Having a shared language and targeted messaging should help us.  We will also 
coordinate our visits and engage in cross-divisional marketing. We also need to define our social 
media strategy. Two large challenges will be improving our physical space and redesigning our 
website. None of these recommendations are insurmountable. However, it needs to be more than just 
a logo and new colors.  

Deschutes County Library went through rebranding, and did it very well. Malkin will connect us with 
Chantal Strobel at Deschutes Public Library. She and Strobel would be a very welcome addition to 
our Build Awareness planning group.  

The board was extremely supportive of the recommendations and moving forward with these 
activities.  

OPEN FORUM 

The open forum began at 11:30 a.m. No one was present to comment at the open forum. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Nominating Committee 

Bonebrake called for volunteers to serve on the nominating committee. Bell, Malkin, and Tucker 
agreed to be on the committee. This election will occur at the June meeting for chair and vice chair.  

Adoption of Board Bylaws 

Malkin and Hicks presented the changes to the bylaws. Changes included language clean up, such as 
removing the word “Trustees.” They also adjusted the language to match the statute. Bonebrake drew 
the board’s attention to the fact that absences other than those due to illness need to be approved by 
the board chair.  

Tucker moved to adopt the updated board bylaws. Upadhyay seconded. The motion passed 
unanimously.  

2017-2019 Budget Request  

The board budget committee is made up of Malkin, Tucker, Johnson, and Bonebrake, in addition to 
Range and Dahlgreen. The board budget committee needs to determine what legislative concepts we 
may want to ask for. The board’s next regular meeting is on June 10th, during which the budget 
committee will present the budget for approval. We may also need to have a phone meeting in July.  

10



Dahlgreen has submitted a legislative concept that makes changes to the Ready to Read grant 
program, adding 2015-17 year olds, which would affect the rate per child. This increase would be a 
policy option package. Upadhyay commented that we would need a policy option package whether or 
not there was money attached to this concept. Currently, the amount for Ready to Read is 94 cents per 
child. For years, we have discussed $1 per child, but $2 per child is much better. Early literacy is a 
focus for the state.  

Ives mentioned that a hub will be meeting in The Dalles this summer, STEM, regional hubs, and other 
education leaders. Ives will see if she can arrange for Dahlgreen to attend this meeting.  

We also need to move the funding of our IT department out of the Government Information and 
Library Services budget and into the Operations budget, which we have tried to do for the past few 
biennia. Upadhyay mentioned that this could be a technical change rather than a policy option 
package. Upadhyay will speak with Dahlgreen about this.  

Dahlgreen explained that we are also looking at a policy option package to move some of our IT 
services to Enterprise Technology Services (ETS), which will have some initial costs.   

The budget process this year will not be using program funding teams, which brought people in from 
the community and private organizations.  

Upadhyay recommended that we be proactive as an agency, and communicate frequently to provide 
clarity around issues.    

Review of Board Statutory Responsibilities 

Bonebrake reviewed some of the board responsibilities mentioned in the statute.  

During the board’s June 10th meeting, we will be having a public hearing in the morning. We will take 
public comment until noon. There will be an agenda item in the afternoon to either vote on the 
administrative rules or extend the conversation, and vote by phone afterward.   

Upadhyay suggested that we invite our assistant attorney general to the June 10th public hearing. 

Dahlgreen and Harrison will reach out to the State of Oregon Law Library, the State Archives, and 
any other involved agencies, before the hearing. There have been questions from other stakeholders 
about the process, but most of their questions were resolved at the administrative rule meetings that 
already took place.  

Dahlgreen mentioned that in the future, we need to involve someone from the Oregon Library 
Association, the Oregon Heritage Commission, and others in the community when the board works on 
the next strategic plan.  

We are developing new key performance measures, which we will be submitting with our budget.  

Harrison explained the certification process. If a state agency has a library resource center or entity 
housed within the agency that falls under the definition of a library, it will go through a certification 
process to see if it meets the criteria. For example, does it support the mission of the agency? Does the 
center acquire, select, and house materials?  

This is an opportunity for us to find out which state agencies have libraries, to explore what they do 
and do not offer, and how we can be more efficient within the state. It will be a tool to help us make 
libraries enterprise-wide, rather than individual. But also agencies will be able to say if they need to 
have a specific collection, which they need someone to house and maintain.  

11



The State Reference Coordinating Council is a legislative mandate for the State of Oregon Law 
Library, the State Archives, and the Oregon State Library to meet once a year. Those two entities are 
not include in the database subscription administrative rule. For example, if a patron needs a legal 
database, we will send a request to the State of Oregon Law Library to take care of.  

There will be cost savings to the state by reducing duplication and increasing efficiencies with regard 
to databases. We are also establishing more partnerships.  

These rules very clearly state that the requests from the State Library need to be work related, not for 
personal use.  

It was suggested that we put the statutory requirements in the board work plan.  

Talking Book and Braille Advisory Council Recommendations 

The Talking Book and Braille Advisory Council recommended changes to the council’s bylaws, 
including wording changes to make the bylaws clearer and more accurate. The bylaws also outline the 
new nomination and appointment process. The new process involves presenting a vetted list of 
candidates, rather than having the board choose between people with whom they are not familiar.  

The board discussed dyslexia and the need for doctor’s certification. It is difficult to reach younger 
children. Schools will be getting dyslexia specialists. Dahlgreen wants to meet with the person who is 
in charge of the school dyslexia specialists. Dahlgreen will look into getting OLA and ALA to move 
on this issue.  

Tucker made motion to approve the bylaws. Malkin seconded. The motion passed unanimously.  

The Talking Book and Braille Advisory Council recommended changes to the Endowment Fund for 
the Oregon Talking Book and Braille Library policy. This policy clarifies what we can do with these 
funds.  

There is currently no legal definition of endowment. The board expressed concern about the last 
paragraph of the policy, which seemed to suggest that the board can choose what they want to do with 
the funds. The board wanted to take this portion out of the policy.  

Malkin moves that we accept the changes with the deletion of the final paragraph. Tucker 
seconded. The motion passed unanimously. 

The board decided to hold a two-day planning meeting in January 2017, rather than in August, 2016. 
They also needed to change both the August and the October meeting dates. The August meeting will 
be held on August 26th at the State Library and the October meeting will be held on October 28th at 
the Independence Public Library. Hicks will contact the Independence Public Library to move the 
date. The meeting in January will be a full day on January 19th and a half day on January 20, 2017. 

Board meeting ended at 2:57 pm.  

ACTION ITEMS  

• Rondema will correct the error in the January 8, 2016 board meeting minutes.  
• Bonebrake will send Baker County Library District’s report about library foundations and 

friends to Dahlgreen and the board.  
• Malkin will ask Dunkelberg to share documents about the library family meetings involving 

the friends and the foundation.  

12



• Hicks will provide Dahlgreen with the contact information for the trainer that they have used 
at Nike, who also does work with nonprofits. 

• Upadhyay will share a board work plan with us from the Department of Forestry.  
• Dahlgreen will bring a draft board work plan to the June board meeting.  
• Malkin will connect us with Chantal Strobel of Deschutes Public Library regarding branding 

and communications; she and Malkin may join one of our Build Awareness meetings.  
• Upadhyay will speak with Dahlgreen about moving IT funding from Government Services to 

Operations and if it can be a technical change instead of a policy option package.  
• Ives will try to arrange for Dahlgreen to attend the educational hub meeting in The Dalles this 

summer.  
• Dahlgreen and Harrison will reach out to the State of Oregon Law Library, the State Archives, 

and any other involved agencies about the proposed administrative rules, before the hearing on 
June 10th.  

• Ives will help Dahlgreen set up a meeting with the person who is in charge of the school 
dyslexia specialists.  

• Dahlgreen will look into getting OLA and ALA to move on this issue of requiring doctor 
certification for dyslexia.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



 
 

Reports of the State Librarian and Staff 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

14



 
 

OREGON STATE LIBRARY 
2015-17 BIENNIUM BUDGET REPORT 

 Report Period Month Ending April, 2016 
Target Percentage 41.67% 

Budget Object Title Budget 
Current Month 
Expenditures  

Expenditures 
Biennium to 

Date 
Remaining 

Budget  
%Spent 

BTD 

Average Spend 
per month to 

Date 

Average 
Remaining to 

Spend 
PERSONAL SERVICES  $  6,693,758   $         261,055   $      2,598,559   $      4,095,199  38.82%  $         259,856   $         292,514  
SERVICES & SUPPIES  $  4,147,742   $         110,636   $      1,649,873   $      2,497,869  39.78%  $         164,987   $         178,419  
SPECIAL PAYMENTS  $  3,984,711   $          93,846   $      1,396,723   $      2,587,988  35.05%  $         139,672   $         184,856  
TOTAL  $14,826,211   $         465,537   $      5,645,155   $      9,181,056  38.08%  $         564,516   $         655,790  

Tuesday, May 24, 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15



 
OREGON STATE LIBRARY 

2015-17 BIENNIUM BUDGET REPORT 
 

 
Report Period Month Ending April, 2016 

 
Target Percentage 41.67% 

Division 
Name Budget Object Title Budget 

Current Month 
Expenditures 

Expenditures 
Biennium to 

Date 
Remaining 

Budget 
% Spent 

BTD 

Average 
Spent per 

Month to Date 

Average 
Remaining to 

Spend 
Operations  PERSONAL SERVICES  $   1,239,729   $       38,220   $     387,669   $     852,060  31.27%  $       38,767   $       60,861  

SERVICES AND 
SUPPLIES  $     195,319   $         8,484   $       75,373   $     119,946  38.59%  $         7,537   $         8,568  
CAPITAL OUTLAY  $         2,412   $                -   $                -   $         2,412  0.00%  $                -   $            172  
Total  $   1,437,460   $       46,704   $     463,042   $     974,418  32.21%  $       46,304   $       69,601  

Library 
Development 

PERSONAL SERVICES  $   1,370,232   $       58,940   $     573,575   $     796,657  41.86%  $       57,358   $       56,904  
SERVICES AND 
SUPPLIES  $   1,779,491   $       13,244   $     733,617   $   1,045,874  41.23%  $       73,362   $       74,705  
SPECIAL PAYMENTS  $   3,984,711   $       93,846   $   1,396,723   $   2,587,988  35.05%  $     139,672   $     184,856  
Total  $   7,134,434   $     166,030   $   2,703,915   $   4,430,519  37.90%  $     270,392   $     316,466  

Talking Book 
and Braille 
Services 

PERSONAL SERVICES  $   1,109,975   $       43,144   $     424,621   $     685,354  38.26%  $       42,462   $       48,954  
SERVICES AND 
SUPPLIES  $     567,024   $       10,303   $     166,212   $     400,812  29.31%  $       16,621   $       28,629  
CAPITAL OUTLAY  $         9,046   $                -   $                -   $         9,046  0.00%  $                -   $            646  
Total  $   1,686,045   $       53,447   $     590,833   $   1,095,212  35.04%  $       59,083   $       78,229  

Government 
Research 
Services 

PERSONAL SERVICES  $   2,973,822   $     120,751   $   1,212,695   $   1,761,127  40.78%  $     121,270   $     125,795  
SERVICES AND 
SUPPLIES  $   1,583,437   $       78,605   $     674,670   $     908,767  42.61%  $       67,467   $       64,912  
CAPITAL OUTLAY  $       11,013   $                -   $                -   $       11,013  0.00%  $                -   $            787  
Total  $   4,568,272   $     199,356   $   1,887,365   $   2,680,907  41.31%  $     188,737   $     191,493  

Total  $ 14,826,211   $     465,537   $   5,645,155   $   9,181,056  38.08%  $     564,516   $     655,790  
Tuesday, May 24, 2016 

 
 
 
 

16



 
OREGON STATE LIBRARY 

2015-17 BIENNIUM BUDGET REPORT 

 
  

Report Period Month Ending April, 2016 

  
Target Percentage 41.67% 

Program 
Code 

Program 
Code Title Budget Object Title   

Current 
Month 

Expenditures 

Expenditures 
Biennium to 

Date 
Remaining 

Budget 
% Spent 

BTD 

Average 
Spent per 
Month to 

Date 

Average 
Remaining 
to spend 

1200 OSL 
BOARD 

PERSONAL SERVICES  $   1,900   $           326   $           652   $        1,248  34.32%  $             65   $             89  
SERVICES AND SUPPLIES  $ 22,360   $        2,881   $        9,643   $       12,717  43.13%  $           964   $           908  
Total  $ 24,260   $        3,207   $       10,295   $       13,965  42.44%  $        1,030   $           998  

Tuesday, May 24, 2016 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

17



 
OREGON STATE LIBRARY 

2015-17 BIENNIUM BUDGET REPORT 

  

 
Agency Title 

OREGON STATE 
LIBRARY 

OREGON 
STATE LIBRARY 

OREGON STATE 
LIBRARY 

 
Report Date 5/31/2015 5/24/2016 6/2015 to 6/2016 

Accounts Account Title Cash Balance Cash Balance 12 Month Change 
TBABS ENDOWMENT FUND 
INTEREST 

CASH ON DEPOSIT 
WITH TREASURER 0300     $               25,322.82   $        23,583.18   $           (1,739.64) 

TBABS ENDOWMENT FUND 
CASH ON DEPOSIT 
WITH TREASURER 0301  $          1,922,372.76   $      592,027.76   $    (1,330,345.00) 

Oregon Intermediate Term Pool (OITP) Treasury Investment Fund  $                          -     $   1,395,634.08   $          26,317.08  

LONG FUND - NON EXPENDABLE 
CASH ON DEPOSIT 
WITH TREASURER 0302  $                 1,000.00   $          1,000.00   $                      -    

MOSES FUND - NON EXPENDABLE 
CASH ON DEPOSIT 
WITH TREASURER 0303  $                 6,000.00   $          6,000.00   $                      -    

LONG FUND - EXPENDABLE 
CASH ON DEPOSIT 
WITH TREASURER 0306  $                     36.96   $              42.94   $                   5.98  

MOSES FUND - EXPENDABLE 
CASH ON DEPOSIT 
WITH TREASURER 0307  $                 8,185.47   $          7,546.75   $              (638.72) 

TBABS DONATION FUND 
CASH ON DEPOSIT 
WITH TREASURER 0308  $             125,643.12   $      211,712.50   $          86,069.38  

DATABASE LICENSING RESERVE 
CASH ON DEPOSIT 
WITH TREASURER 0321  $               40,445.91   $        40,687.97   $               242.06  

TOTAL    $          2,129,007.04   $   2,278,235.18   $    (1,220,088.86) 

     Tuesday, May 24, 2016 
* Since the OITP fund has not been around for at least 12 months the 12 month change shows the change since initial investment.  

 
 
 
 
 

18



 
 

2017-2019 Budget Request 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 
Agenda Item  

2017-2019 Budget Request 
 

Background and Summary 
The State Library Board is responsible for the creation and submission of an 
agency request budget to the Governor’s office by July 31, 2016. The State 
Library Board Budget Committee will meet on June 1, 2016 and June 7, 2016 
to complete development of the 2017-2019 Budget Request for the State 
Library. The request will be presented to the Board at the June 10, 2016 
Board meeting. 

 
State Librarian Recommendation 

State Librarian recommends adoption of the 2017-2019 budget request to be 
submitted to the Governor’s office by July 31, 2016. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20



 
 

Adoption of OAR 543 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21



 
Agenda Item 
 Proposed Changes to OAR, Chapter 543 
 
Background and Summary 

On May 1, 2016, the State Library issued an announcement of a comment 
period through June 10, 2016 and a public hearing at the June 10, 2016, 
Oregon State Library Board meeting regarding adoption of revisions to 
Permanent Administrative Rules OAR 543, more specifically the adoption of 
rules 543-020-0050 through 543-020-0080. 
 
OAR 543-020-0050 through 543-020-0080 provides the framework for 
certification of state agency libraries, outlining the eligible recipients of 
Government Information Services, and creating the approval process for 
database and subscription licenses.  (Attachment 1) 
 
The other changes within the Oregon Administrative Rules are updating the 
language from Oregon State Library Board of Trustees to Oregon State 
Library Board and general administrative and housekeeping updates. 
(Attachment 2) 

 
Recommendations of the State Librarian 

The State Librarian recommends that the Board adopt the proposed changes 
to the Oregon Administrative Rules, Chapter 543.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

22



Attachment 1 
Proposed Changes to OAR Chapter 543, Division 20 
Government Information Services 

[Proposed additions is in Bold.  Proposed deletions shown by strikethrough. ] 

543-010-0022  

Eligible Recipients of Research Services 

In addition to research services defined in OAR 543-010-0032, the State Library provides resource materials and 
research services to the following:  

(1) State officials, including legislators;  

(2) State employees;  

(3) Former statewide-elected government officials.  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.015(2)  
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.005(2)(c), ORS 357.005(2)(f) & ORS 357.003(2)  
Hist.: OSL 55, f. & ef. 1-12-76; OSL 2-1980, f. & ef. 10-2-80; OSL 1-1989, f. 4-18-89, cert. ef. 4-17-89; OSL 1-1995, 
f. & cert. ef. 10-27-95; OSL 1-2000, f. & cert. ef. 4-13-00  

 
Division 20 

Fees  Government Information Services 

543-020-0050 

Scope 

OAR Chapter 543, division 20, applies only to the Government Information Services and to carry out the 
provisions of Chapter 328 (2015 Oregon Laws)  
 
Stat Auth.: ORS 357.008 (1) 
Stats. Implemented:  ORS 357.028, ORS 357.029, ORS 357.031, and ORS 357.115  

543-020-0055 

Definitions 

The following definitions apply to the terms used in this division: 

 
(1)  “Government Information Services” means the physical collections, online resources and professional 

library staff that support the information needs of Oregon State Government  
(2)  “Terms of Service” means the provisions that patrons consent to in order to access Government 

Information Services. 
(3) “State agency libraries and resource centers” include libraries, resource centers or any other entity 

housed within a state agency that supports the mission of the agency by selecting, purchasing, 
managing and sharing information resources.  

(4) "State agency library" does not include the State of Oregon Law Library, a county law library, or the 
State Archives 

(5) “reference-related databases” means authoritative, informational resources in electronic                       
format. 

23



(6) “physical and digital subscription licenses” means serial publications in either print or electronic 
formats (such as a newspaper or journal) accessible for a designated period of time or for a prescribed 
number of successive issues.   

(7) “reference-related databases or physical and digital subscription licenses” does not include: 
(a) publications connected to professional association memberships  
(b) software licenses  
(c) free of charge subscriptions 
(d) databases, information resources, subscription licenses or other services or resources provided by 
the State Archives; 
(e) legal databases, legal information  resources,  legal subscription  licenses  or  other  law-related  
services  or  resources. 
 

Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.008 (1) 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.028 and ORS 357.029 
 

 
543-020-0060 
Eligible Recipients of Government Information Services 
The State Library provides Government Information Services that pertain to the business of state government 
according to its Terms of Service for these recipients: 

(1) State officials, including legislators; 

(2) State employees; 

(3) Former statewide-elected government officials; 

(4) Contract employees and interns at the request of the state agency. 

 
Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.008 (1) 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.028 
Hist.: OSL 55, f. & ef. 1-12-76; OSL 2-1980, f. & ef. 10-2-80; OSL 1-1989, f. 4-18-89, cert. ef. 4-17-89; OSL 1-
1995, f. & cert. ef. 10-27-95; OSL 1-2000, f. & cert. ef. 4-13-00 
 
543-020-0070 
Certification of State Agency Libraries  
(1) The certification process applies to all state agency libraries and resource centers. 
(2) Intent and Purpose 

(a) The intent of library certification is to increase awareness of state agency library resources and 
services that improve customer service, build a structure for partnerships and interagency 
coordination, reduce duplication,  and create cost efficiencies through shared purchasing of library 
resources.  
(b) The purpose of these rules is to establish the certification process and review criteria.    

 
(3) Process 

(a) The lead librarian or staff member/manager responsible for the state agency library or resource 
center shall be responsible for carrying out the agency’s obligations under this section. Each state 
agency library will notify the State Librarian of the name of the library staff person who will be the 
contact person for the state agency library or resource center.  
(b) The State Library will maintain a list of state agency libraries and resource centers. All state 
agency libraries and resource centers on the list will go through the certification process.  
(c) The State Library will certify state agency libraries once each biennium.   
(d) Biennially, the State Librarian shall conduct a review of each state agency library’s compliance 
with State Agency Library Standards of Operation and report the findings to the legislature.  
(e) State agency libraries and resource centers meeting State Agency Library Standards of Operation 
shall be certified.  In determining certification, the State Library shall apply the following criteria: 
State Agency Library Standards of Operation: 

(A) The contact person regularly consults with agency management in developing collection 
resources that meet the information needs of agency staff and align with the strategic plans of 
the agency.  

24



(B) The contact person consults with the State Library on the purchase and licensing of 
needed information products and services per State Library administrative rules to assure the 
best possible price agreement 
(C) The contact person partners with other state agency libraries to promote shared resources 
and programs that increase efficiencies across state government 
(D) The contact person develops and uses metrics to continually measure the use, quality and 
value of the agency library/resource center. Results are reported to agency management and 
the State Library on an annual basis.   
(E) The state agency library or resource center is staffed by personnel whose library 
responsibility is a substantial component of the position description and the agency has a 
dedicated budget for purchasing information resources. 

(f) The State Library will send written notification of the state agency library’s certification status.  
(g) An agency may file an appeal of the decision directly to the State Librarian if it is not satisfied with 
the decision. The contact person must file any appeal within ten (10) business days from the date of the 
notice. 

 
Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.029 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.029 
 
543-020-0080 
Database and Subscriptions Licenses 
 (1) The approval process for database and subscriptions licenses applies to all state agencies except the State of 
Oregon Law Library, a county law library and the State Archives. 
(2) Intent and Purpose 

 
(a) The intent of establishing a review and approval process for reference databases and subscriptions is 

to build awareness of state agency subscriptions statewide, reduce duplication and create cost 
efficiencies through cooperative purchasing of library resources, and reduce subscription costs for 
state agencies.  

(b) The purpose of these rules is to outline procedures for the state agency to obtain approval from the 
State Library for the purchase of reference databases and subscription licenses, and to establish the 
review, approval, and appeal process.    

 
(3) Process 

(a) The head of each agency, or a designee, shall be the subscriptions liaison for the agency. Each 
agency shall notify the State Librarian of the name of the agency’s subscriptions liaison.  The 
subscriptions liaison is responsible for carrying out the agency’s obligations under this section. The 
subscriptions liaison serves in a consultative and advisory role in cooperation with the State Library. 

 
(b) Prior to purchasing reference-related databases or physical and digital subscriptions, the 
subscriptions liaison shall submit title, publisher, vendor and other pertinent subscription information 
to the State Library requesting approval. The information must be submitted at least sixty (60) days 
prior to the agency’s desired subscription start date.  If the materials could meet the definitions in 543-
020-0055 (7)(d) and (e) the request will be reviewed by the Reference Coordinating Council to 
determine the disposition of the request.   

 
(c) Prior to renewing reference-related databases or physical and digital subscriptions, the 
subscriptions liaison shall notify the State Library of its desire to renew an existing subscription at 
least sixty (60) days prior to the vendor’s purchase deadline.  

 
(d) In the event there is a situation requiring expedited approval, the subscriptions liaison shall notify 
the State Library of its urgency and provide subscription information as early as possible. Rush 
requests shall receive highest priority in the approval process.  

 
(e) In evaluating each request for approval, the State Library may apply the following criteria: 

(A) The State Library has a subscription to the database and provides unrestricted access to 
all state agency staff.  
(B) The State Library has coordinated a cooperative purchase for the database or print/digital 
subscription for a group of state agencies.  

25



(C) There is broad interest across state government in the database or physical/digital 
subscription and it meets the State Library collection development policy. 
(D) There is interest in the database or physical/digital subscription among a select group of 
state agencies  
(E) No other state agency subscribes to the database or physical/digital subscription; however 
there is potential high demand for the subscription.  
(F) No other state agency subscribes to the database or physical/digital subscription, it is a 
specialized resource and it would have minimal use by other state agencies.   

(f) The State Library will send written notification of its decision to approve or deny the request to 
purchase the subscription within thirty (30) days of receipt of request.  

 
(g) An agency may file an appeal of the decision directly to the State Librarian if it is not satisfied with 
the decision. The subscriptions liaison must file any appeal within ten (10) business days from the date 
of the notice 
 
Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.115(3) 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.115 (1)(2)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26



Attachment 2 
Proposed Changes to OAR Chapter 543 
State Library Board  

[Proposed additions is in Bold.  Proposed deletions shown by strikethrough. ] 

543-001-0010  

Confidentiality and Inadmissibility of Mediation Communications 

(1)Wwords and phrases used in this rule have the same meaning as given to them in ORS 36.110 and 36.234. 

(2) Nothing in this rule affects any confidentiality created by other law. Nothing in this rule relieves a public body 
from complying with the Public Meetings Law, ORS 192.610 to 192.690. Whether or not they are confidential under 
this or other rules of the agency, mediation communications are exempt from disclosure under the Public Records 
Law to the extent provided in 192.410 to 192.505. 
. 
. 
. 
 
(9) Exceptions to confidentiality and inadmissibility. 
 
(a) Any statements, memoranda, work products, documents and other materials, otherwise subject to discovery that 
were not prepared specifically for use in the mediation are not confidential and may be disclosed or introduced into 
evidence in a subsequent proceeding. 
(b) Any mediation communications that are public records, as defined in ORS 192.410(4), and were not specifically 
prepared for use in the mediation are not confidential and may be disclosed or introduced into evidence in a 
subsequent proceeding unless the substance of the communication is confidential or privileged under state or federal 
law. 
. 
. 
. 
 (m) Written mediation communications prepared by or for the agency or its attorney are not confidential and may be 
disclosed and may be introduced as evidence in any subsequent administrative, judicial or arbitration proceeding to 
the extent the communication does not contain confidential information from the mediator or another party, except for 
those written mediation communications that are: 

(A) Attorney-client privileged communications so long as they have been disclosed to no one other than the mediator 
in the course of the mediation or to persons as to whom disclosure of the communication would not waive the 
privilege; or 

(B) Attorney work product prepared in anticipation of litigation or for trial; or 

(C) Prepared exclusively for the mediator or in a caucus session and not given to another party in the mediation other 
than a state agency; or 

(D) Prepared in response to the written request of the mediator for specific documents or information and given to 
another party in the mediation; or 

(E) Settlement concepts or proposals, shared with the mediator or other parties. 

(n) A mediation communication made to the agency may be disclosed and may be admitted into evidence to the 
extent the Oregon State Library Board of Trustees determines that disclosure of the communication is necessary to 
prevent or mitigate a serious danger to the public's health or safety, and the communication is not otherwise 
confidential or privileged under state or federal law. 

(o) The terms of any mediation agreement are not confidential and may be introduced as evidence in a subsequent 
proceeding, except to the extent the terms of the agreement are exempt from disclosure under ORS 192.410 to 

27



192.505, a court has ordered the terms to be confidential under ORS 30.402 or state or federal law requires the terms 
to be confidential. 

(p) The mediator may report the disposition of a mediation to the agency at the conclusion of the mediation so long as 
the report does not disclose specific confidential mediation communications. The agency or the mediator may use or 
disclose confidential mediation communications for research, training or educational purposes, subject to the 
provisions of ORS 36.232(4). 

(10) When a mediation is subject to section (7) of this rule, the agency will provide to all parties to the mediation and 
the mediator a copy of this rule or a citation to the rule and an explanation of where a copy of the rule may be 
obtained. Violation of this provision does not waive confidentiality or inadmissibility. 

Stat. Auth.: ORS 36.224 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 36.224, ORS 36.228, ORS 36.230 & ORS 36.232 
Hist.: OSL 1-1999(Temp), f. & cert. ef. 2-22-99 thru 8-1-99; OSL 2-1999, f. & cert. ef. 6-21-99 

543-010-0003  

Definitions 

The following words, when used in Administrative Rules adopted by the Oregon State Library Board of Trustees, 
shall mean the following:  

(1) "Board" means the Oregon State Library Board of Trustees.  

(2) "Chair" means the the presiding officer of the Board.  

(3) “State Library Resources” are library materials and services to support the informational needs of state 
government employees, Oregonians with print disabilities and local libraries.   

Stat. Auth.: ORS 357  
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.021 and ORS 357.028 
Hist.: OSL 55, f. & ef. 1-12-76; OSL 1-1989, f. 4-18-89, cert. ef. 4-17-89  

543-010-0016  

Meetings and Notice 

(1) The State Librarian shall follow the procedures established by the Attorney General's Public Meetings and 
Records Manual, as amended from time to time, for providing notices of Board meetings. Unless the meeting is called 
exclusively for the purpose of holding an executive session as set forth in ORS 192.660, copies of the meeting notices 
shall be sent to organizations and individuals designated by the Board.  

(2) A copy of the notice shall be sent to any organization or individual previously notifying the Chair or the State 
Librarian of interest in the subject matter to be considered at the meeting.  

[Publications: The publication(s) referred to or incorporated by reference in this rule are available from the.agency.]  
(Agency note:  Remove period between the words “the” and “agency”.) 

Stat. Auth.: ORS 357  
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.050  
Hist.: OSL 55, f. & ef. 1-12-76; OSL 1-1989, f. 4-18-89, cert. ef. 4-17-89; OSL 1-2000, f. & cert. ef. 4-13-00  

 

543-010-0021  

28



Eligible Borrowers 

The State Library will lend library materials to:  

(1) Legally established public libraries.  

(2) Educational institution libraries.  

(3) State agencies and their employees.  

(4) Print-disabled individuals who are eligible to borrow library materials from the Talking Book and Braille Services 
Library.  

(5) Individuals with current Oregon addresses who request materials in person at the State Library.  

(6) Special libraries (as listed in directories as maintained by Oregon State Library or other standard library 
directories).  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.021 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.026 and ORS 357.028  
Hist.: OSL 55, f. & ef. 1-12-76; OSL 2-1980, f. & ef. 10-2-80; OSL 1-1989, f. 4-18-89, cert. ef. 4-17-89; OSL 1-1992, 
f. 2-11-92, cert. ef. 2-17-92; OSL 1-1993, f. & cert. ef. 11-10-93; OSL 1-1995, f. & cert. ef. 10-27-95; OSL 1-2000, f. 
& cert. ef. 4-13-00  

543-010-0026 

Copying Charges 

The State Library Board authorizes the State Library to charge current rates for the following types of 
copying. The fee schedule will be available to the public in a State Library policy.  

(1) Photocopies from print publications.  

(2) Photocopies from microfilm.  

 (3) Copies of photographs using a library approved vendor.  

(4) Print-outs from electronic resources.  

Copying charges for state employees and officials on state business are covered by its agency assessments. Fees 
based on current rates may be charged for copying beyond reasonable levels.  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.026 (1)  
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.026 (1) 
Hist.: LIB 1, f. 9-10-47; LIB 1A, f. 8-12-48; LIB 4, f. 4-18-49; LIB 6, f. 12-9-55; LIB 13, f. 12-18-59; LIB 14, f. 5-
5-61, ef. 6-10-61; OSL 20, f. 9-17-63, ef. 10-11-63; OSL 51, f. 5-8-72, ef. 6-1-72; OSL 55, f. & ef. 1-12-76; OSL 2-
1980, f. & ef. 10-2-80; OSL 1-1989, f. 4-18-89, cert. ef. 4-17-89; OSL 1-1992, f. 2-11-92, cert. ef. 2-17-92; OSL 2-
1992, f. & cert. ef. 11-2-92; OSL 1-1993, f. & cert. ef. 11-10-93; OSL 1-1995, f. & cert. ef. 10-27-95; OSL 1-2000, 
f. & cert. ef. 4-13-00  

 

543-010-0030  

Overdue and Lost Materials 

29



(1) Borrowers will:  

(a) Return library materials no later than the due date;  

(b) Make full payment for lost materials within 30 days of the date of the bill notice.  

(c) Materials borrowed through Interlibrary Loan will be billed in amounts to be determined by the lending library.  

(2) The State Library will suspend service to those individuals and libraries who abuse borrowing provisions of 
Oregon State Library or Interlibrary Loan materials until all overdue material or payment for replacement is received 
by the State Library.  

(3) The State Library Board of Trustees authorizes the State Librarian to set fees for overdue or lost materials, 
whether circulated by the State Library directly or through interlibrary loan. The fee schedule shall be available to the 
public in a State Library policy.  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.026 (1) 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.026 (1) 
Hist.: OSL 14, f. 5-5-61, ef. 6-10-61; OSL 55, f. & ef. 1-12-76; OSL 2-1980, f. & ef. 10-2-80; OSL 1-1989, f. 4-18-
89, cert. ef. 4-17-89; OSL 1-1995, f. & cert. ef. 10-27-95; OSL 1-2000, f. & cert. ef. 4-13-00  

543-010-0032  

Genealogical and Oregoniana Services 

(1) Genealogical Services provided by library employees shall be limited to reasonable assistance to visitors to the 
State Library.  

(2) Oregoniana services provided by library employees shall be limited to access and reasonable assistance in using 
the Library's unique Oregoniana materials for walk-in patrons.  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.015(2)  
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.005(2)(f)  
Hist.: OSL 55, f. & ef. 1-12-76; OSL 1-1992, f. 2-11-92, cert. ef. 2-17-92; OSL 1-1995, f. & cert. ef. 10-27-95; OSL 
1-2000, f. & cert. ef. 4-13-00  

DIVISION 20 

FEES GOVERNMENT INFORMATION SERVICES 

****(Renaming the Division from Fees to Government Information Services)**** 

543-020-0010   

Copying Charges 

The State Library Board authorizes the State Library to charge current rates for the following types of copying. The 
fee schedule will be available to the public in a State Library policy.  

(1) Photocopies from print publications. Copy cards are available.  

(2) Photocopies from microfilm.  

(3) Copies of machine readable files for the cost of a diskette purchased from the library.  

(4) Copies of photographs using a library approved vendor.  

30



(5) Print-outs from electronic resources.  

Copying charges for state employees and officials on state business are covered by its agency assessments. Fees based 
on current rates may be charged for copying beyond reasonable levels.  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.015(2)  
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.015(2)  
Hist.: LIB 1, f. 9-10-47; LIB 1A, f. 8-12-48; LIB 4, f. 4-18-49; LIB 6, f. 12-9-55; LIB 13, f. 12-18-59; LIB 14, f. 5-5-
61, ef. 6-10-61; OSL 20, f. 9-17-63, ef. 10-11-63; OSL 51, f. 5-8-72, ef. 6-1-72; OSL 55, f. & ef. 1-12-76; OSL 2-
1980, f. & ef. 10-2-80; OSL 1-1989, f. 4-18-89, cert. ef. 4-17-89; OSL 1-1992, f. 2-11-92, cert. ef. 2-17-92; OSL 2-
1992, f. & cert. ef. 11-2-92; OSL 1-1993, f. & cert. ef. 11-10-93; OSL 1-1995, f. & cert. ef. 10-27-95; OSL 1-2000, f. 
& cert. ef. 4-13-00  

543-020-0025  

Charge for Publications Issued by the Oregon State Library 

(1) A charge to recover production costs for publications of the State Library may be made to:  

(a) Commercial firms;  

(b) Individuals, in-state and out-of-state;  

(c) Libraries outside Oregon except those with which the State Library has a reciprocal arrangement;  

(d) Out-of-state associations and organizations.  

(2) No charge will be made for first copies of publications requested by:  

(a) Librarians and library trustees in Oregon;  

(b) State and provincial libraries.  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.015(2)  
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.015(2)  
Hist.: LIB 1, f. 9-10-47; LIB 1A, f. 8-12-48; LIB 4, f. 4-18-49; LIB 6, f. 12-9-55; LIB 13, f. 12-18-59; OSL 14, f. 5-5-
61, ef. 6-10-61; OSL 20, f. 9-17-63, ef. 10-11-63; OSL 51, f. 5-8-72, ef. 6-1-72; OSL 55, f. & ef. 1-12-76; OSL 1-
1989, f. 4-18-89, cert. ef. 4-17-89; OSL 1-1995, f. & cert. ef. 10-27-95  

 

543-020-0026  

Charge for Library Mailing Labels 

(1) A charge to recover production costs for labels that are a by-product of the Oregon State Library's maintainance of 
directories of Oregon libraries will be made to individuals, commercial firms, profit, and not-for-profit organizations 
when the use of the labels will be for profit-making ventures, or political purposes.  

(2) Library, literary, cultural, and education-related not-for-profit organizations in Oregon shall not be charged for 
labels when proposing to mail information about events, conferences, workshops, or information products to libraries.  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.015(2)  
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.015(2)  
Hist.: OSL 1-1995, f. & cert. ef. 10-27-95  

31



543-020-0030  

Charge for Database Search Costs 

A charge, to be determined by the State Librarian, for recovery of database search costs may be made, billable by the 
State Library Business Office. Charges will be established on a per search basis, contingent on the cost of the 
database being queried.  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.015(2)  
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.015(2)  
Hist.: OSL 1-1989, f. 4-18-89, cert. ef. 4-17-89; OSL 1-1992, f. 2-11-92, cert. ef. 2-17-92; OSL 1-1995, f. & cert. ef. 
10-27-95  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

543-060-0020 

Authorized Activities 

(1) Oregon State Library is authorized to negotiate and contract with commercial database providers on behalf of 
public, school, academic, and tribal libraries to provide access to electronic databases. The statewide database subsidy 
program is established under the provisions of this division to assist eligible public, academic, school and tribal 
libraries to participate in the statewide electronic database program. The Oregon State Library is authorized to collect 
and administer funds from public and academic libraries in payment for such databases.  

(2) Oregon State Library is authorized to provide a statewide cooperative reference service that enables all 
Oregonians to obtain information from library staff at cooperating libraries using advanced Internet technologies. The 
statewide cooperative reference service program is established under the provisions of this division to provide this 
cooperative service and to provide other assistance to public, academic, school and tribal libraries to improve their 
reference services using advanced Internet technologies. The Oregon State Library is authorized to collect and 
administer funds from public and academic libraries to provide partial support for the statewide cooperative reference 
service program in an amount to be determined annually by the Trustees of the State Library State Library Board. 
The Oregon State Library is authorized to provide a statewide cooperative reference service directly or by contracting 
with one or more libraries to provide the service.  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.031 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.206, 357.209 & 357.212 
Hist.: OSL 1-2003(Temp), f. 8-22-03, cert. ef. 9-1-03 thru 1-30-04; OSL 2-2003, f. 12-15-03 cert. ef. 1-1-04; OSL 3-
2006, f. & cert. ef. 2-14-06; OSL 1-2009, f. 2-25-09, cert. ef. 3-2-09; OSL 1-2010, f. 10-19-10, cert. ef. 10-25-10  

 

543-060-0030  

32



Statewide Database Licensing Process 

(1) Eligibility: Any public, school, academic, tribal library or resource sharing system as defined above is eligible to 
participate in the program if the following criteria are met:  

(a) The library or resource sharing system provides interlibrary loans without charge to requesting in-state public, 
academic, school, and tribal libraries and resource sharing systems.  

(b) The public, academic library or resource sharing system is a signatory to and abides by the "Interlibrary Loan 
Code for Oregon Libraries."  

(c) The library or resource sharing system certifies the above criteria are met and agrees to participate in the Statewide 
Database Licensing Program and the Statewide Cooperative Reference Service Program.  

(2) The Statewide Database Licensing Advisory Committee shall be appointed by the Library Services and 
Technology Act (LSTA) Advisory Council.  

(a) Role: The Statewide Database Licensing Advisory Committee shall advise the LSTA Advisory Council and the 
Oregon State Library staff in request for proposal development and database product evaluation, and provide ongoing 
database product assessment and customer feedback. The Statewide Database Licensing Advisory Committee shall 
also advise the LSTA Advisory Council on the appropriate percentage allocation of electronic database costs to 
public, academic and school libraries.  

(b) Membership of the Statewide Database Licensing Advisory Committee: One representative from the LSTA 
Advisory Council; three public library representatives, one each from libraries serving populations over 100,000, 
between 25,000–100,000, and 25,000 or less; three academic library representatives, one each from a community 
college, Oregon University System, public academic institution and private academic institution; one representative 
from a resource sharing system; one tribal library representative, and, two school library representatives. Orbis 
Cascade Alliance and the Organization for Educational Technology and Curriculum (OETC) will each have one 
representative serving in a non-voting, ex officio capacity. In making appointments the LSTA Advisory Council will 
seek representatives with experience in database licensing and the use of databases. 

(c) Terms of appointment: Terms shall be for three years, except initial terms shall be staggered. The LSTA Advisory 
Council representative shall serve a two year term.  

(d) Meetings: The Statewide Database Licensing Advisory Committee shall meet at least twice each calendar year, 
and may meet more often as needed. 

(3) Request for proposal process: The Oregon State Library shall be the fiscal agent for the program and shall use 
Federal funds under the Library Services and Technology Act to subsidize the program. Oregon State Library shall 
work with the Department of Administrative Services to procure electronic databases.  

 (6) Formula for electronic database costs to school libraries: The annual database contract costs to school libraries 
will be supported with LSTA funds as determined by the State Library Board of Trustees, with a recommendation 
from the LSTA Advisory Council.  

(7) Formula for electronic database costs to tribal libraries: The annual database contract costs to tribal libraries will 
be supported with LSTA funds as determined by the State Library Board of Trustees, with a recommendation from 
the LSTA Advisory Council.  

(8) Statewide database expenditure plan: An annual budget for the Statewide Database Licensing Program shall be 
recommended by the Library Services and Technology Act Advisory Council to the State Library Board of Trustees 
and shall be adopted by the State Library Board of Trustees.  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.209 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.206 
Hist.: OSL 1-2003(Temp), f. 8-22-03, cert. ef. 9-1-03 thru 1-30-04; OSL 2-2003, f. 12-15-03 cert. ef. 1-1-04; OSL 1-

33



2004, f. 8-17-04 cert. ef. 9-1-04; OSL 3-2006, f. & cert. ef. 2-14-06; OSL 1-2009, f. 2-25-09, cert. ef. 3-2-09; OSL 1-
2010, f. 10-19-10, cert. ef. 10-25-10  

 

543-060-0040  

Calendar for Statewide Database License Procurement 

The Statewide Database Licensing Program in Request for Proposal years shall follow a calendar of events as listed 
below:  

(1) The Request for Proposal shall be issued no later than January in a year requiring proposal development, and 
responses shall be received no later than March.  

(2) Request for Proposal evaluations shall be completed by the Statewide Database Licensing Advisory Committee 
within 60 days of receipt of responses.  

(3) Recommendations by the Statewide Database Licensing Advisory Committee to the Library Services and 
Technology Act Advisory Council shall be made prior to its May meeting.  

(4) The Library Services and Technology Act Advisory Council shall review the database recommendations at its 
May meeting, and make recommendations to the State Library Board of Trustees in June.  

(5) Participating libraries shall be notified of anticipated costs for that subscription year after the Board meeting, 
invoiced in July, and payments shall be due in August or as determined by the vendor contract. Annual invoicing in 
non-Request for Proposal years shall follow a calendar of events as listed below: Recommendations by the Statewide 
Database Licensing Advisory Committee to the Library Services and Technology Act Advisory Council shall be 
made prior to its May meeting. Participating libraries will be notified of anticipated costs for that subscription year 
after the meeting. The Library Services and Technology Act Advisory Council shall review the database 
recommendations at its May meeting, and make recommendations to the State Library Board of Trustees in June. 
Participating libraries shall be invoiced in July, and payments shall be due in August or as determined by the vendor 
contract.  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.209 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.206, 357.209 & 357.212 
Hist.: OSL 1-2003(Temp), f. 8-22-03, cert. ef. 9-1-03 thru 1-30-04; OSL 2-2003, f. 12-15-03 cert. ef. 1-1-04; OSL 1-
2004, f. 8-17-04 cert. ef. 9-1-04; OSL 1-2009, f. 2-25-09, cert. ef. 3-2-09  

543-060-0070  

Statewide Cooperative Reference Service Program 

(1) Eligibility: Any public, school, academic, tribal library or resource sharing system as defined above is eligible to 
participate in the program.  

(2) Partial Support by Public and Academic Libraries:  

(a) The Trustees of the State Library Board shall, in the last quarter of every calendar year, determine the total 
amount of partial support that will be billed to public and academic libraries in the following calendar year. They shall 
also determine the proportion of the total amount that will be billed to public libraries and to academic libraries.  

(b) Participating public and academic libraries and resource sharing systems shall be billed annually, in July, for 
partial support for the upcoming service year.  

34



(3) Formula for allocating partial support to public and academic libraries: Once the Trustees of the State Library 
Board have has determined the proportional allocation of partial support among public and academic libraries, the 
costs will be further allocated to participants in the following manner: 

(a) The public library or resource sharing system cost is based on the population served during the previous year, as 
determined by the State Library.  

(b) The academic library cost is based on the student enrollment during the previous academic year, as determined by 
official sources, such as the Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS), and the Oregon Community 
College Unified Reporting System (OCCURS). Community college FTE will be adjusted for terms to arrive at an 
average annual full time enrollment.  

(c) Any public library with a service population of less than 20,000 and any academic library with an enrollment of 
less than 1,000 will be exempt from partial support payments for the Statewide Cooperative Reference Services 
Program.  

(4) Statewide Cooperative Reference Services expenditure plan: An annual budget for the Statewide Cooperative 
Reference Services Program shall be recommended by the Library Services and Technology Act Advisory Council to 
the State Library Board of Trustees and shall be adopted by the State Library Board of Trustees.  

Stat. Auth.: ORS 357.209 
Stats. Implemented: ORS 357.206 
Hist.: OSL 1-2009, f. 2-25-09, cert. ef. 3-2-09; OSL 1-2010, f. 10-19-10, cert. ef. 10-25-10  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

35



 
Library Services and Technology Act Advisory Council 

Recommendations  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

36



 
Agenda Item  

Recommendations of the Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) 
Advisory Council. 

 
Background and Summary 

The LSTA Advisory Council met May 16 and 17, 2016 and developed the 
following recommendations to the State Library Board relating to the LSTA 
Grant program. 
 
Attachment #1A and B provides an overview of the 2015-2017 LSTA 
budget and a brief project description of statewide projects. 
 
Attachment #2 is a proposed bylaw changes for the LSTA Council. 
 
Attachment #3 is a summary of the LSTA Advisory Council 
recommendations about grant proposals.   

• Attachment #4 is the Statewide Database Licensing Advisory 
Committee’s (SDLAC) proposal to allocated $20,000 to an Orbis 
Cascade Alliance subsidy for academic libraries to participate in their 
group subscription and $30,000 for the purchase of STEM books. 

• Attachment #5 is the E-rate proposal that will dedicate $25,000 to 
assist in implementing the recommendations from the needs 
assessment 

• Attachment #6 is the continuing education proposal to partner with 
WebJunction and the purchase of the Skillsoft database. 

 
Attachment #7 is the SDLAC project proposal for a centralized portal. 
 

Recommendations of the LSTA Advisory Council 
1) LSTA Advisory Council Bylaws 

The LSTA Advisory Council reviewed the bylaws and recommend 
the following changes: changing State Library Board of Trustees to 
State Library Board, changing the method by which new council 
members are selected and the creation of the Answerland Advisory 
Committee.  See Attachment #2 

 
2) FFY2016 LSTA Grants Proposals Recommended for Funding 

Grants proposals were received from Oregon libraries and cultural or 
educational organizations, the State Library, and SDLAC totaling 23 
continuing grants for a total ask of $989,656. 
 
 

37



# Submitted Type # 
Recommended 

3 Statewide 3 
2 State Library 2 
1 SDLAC 1 
3 Returning 

Competitive  
2 

14 New 
Competitive 

9 

23 Total 17 
 
The LSTA Advisory Council recommended 17 grant proposals for 
funding with a total allocated of $496,652.  Attached is supplemental 
information regarding the State Library and SDLAC grant proposals: 
 Attachment #3:  Summary spreadsheet 
 Attachment #4:  SDLAC proposal 
 Attachment #5:  E-rate proposal 
 Attachment #6:  Continuing Education 

 
3) Centralized Portal Proposal 

The LSTA Advisory Council endorsed a recommendation made by 
the SDLAC that will direct OSL staff to develop a project plan and 
budget which clarifies the role of Libraries of Oregon and lays out a 
path towards a centralized portal.   See Attachment #7  for the full 
proposal.   
 
 

Recommendation of the State Librarian 
 The State Librarian concurs with the recommendations of the LSTA Advisory 
Council. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

38



 
Attachment 1A 

2015 - 2017 LSTA Budget 

  FFY2015 FFY2016 
FFY2017 

(est) 
 Federal LSTA Award $2,150,600 $2,186,528 $2,158,258 

Statewide Services and Continuing 
Projects (fixed costs)       
   *The starred items include staffing costs       
     LSTA Administration $105,000 $110,000 $115,000 
     LSTA Five year plan $0 $30,000 $0 
     Continuing Eduction: Focus on Children 
and Young Adults Institute $31,500 $16,000 $28,000 
     Statistics (Gathering and processing)* $70,000 $76,000 $78,000 
     Youth Services* - Statewide summer 
reading program, best practices $107,000 $97,500 $109,000 
     Center for the Book - Intellectual Freedom 
Clearinghouse, National Book Festival $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 
     School Library Services* - best practices, 
answer questions, gather statistics $105,000 $105,000 $107,000 
     Technology Services* - oversee statewide 
techonlogy programs, E-rate and general 
technology consulting $96,450 $78,000 $80,000 
     Answerland* - Online collaborative 
information service $220,000 $150,000 $150,000 
 Statewide Database Licensing Program 
(SDLP)* - Gale, LearningExpress Library, Job 
and Career Accelerator, EBSCO/Proquest 
subsidy $609,094 $679,344 $749,344 
     Edge Initiative - tools for assessment, 
planning, and development of public access 
technology services at public libraries $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 
SubTotal $1,396,044 $1,393,844 $1,468,344 
        
Budgeted however negotiable       
     OSLIS - K-12 information literacy 
resources & access point for statewide 
databases $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 
     Sage Courier $47,700 $47,700 $47,700 
     Oregon Battle of the Books - statewide 
reading motivation program for grades 3-12 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 

     Competive Grants $500,000 $496,652 $500,000 

Sub Total $587,700 $584,352 $587,700 

39



 
Anticipated new expenditures       
   E-rate Development - needs assessment and 
recommendations for assisting libraries with new 
funding options $0 $25,000 $0 
   Continuing Education for library staff - online 
learning resources (webinars, self-paced 
courses, tutorials) for library staff $0 $12,000 $0 

    Competive Grants (remainder of total grant 
proposals over the $500,000  base) $134,049 $0 $0 
   SDLAC proposal for additional SDLP support $0 $50,000 $0 
   OSLIS upgrade $23,800 $0 $0 
SubTotal $157,849 $87,000 $0 
Unencumbered Funds $9,007 $121,332 $102,214 

    
    Updated 5/25/2016 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

40



Attachment 1B 

2016 LSTA Budget: Brief Project Descriptions 
 
 

LSTA Administration  
These funds cover miscellaneous expenses in running the LSTA grant program.  
Included are the state mandated agency overhead and the LSTA Advisory Council costs.   
 
LSTA Five Year Plan  
The LSTA Five Year Plan guides the State Library on how to most effectively spend the 
LSTA grant monies.  On a five year cycle, the current LSTA plan is evaluated using focus 
groups and surveys.   Results from the evaluation are then used to craft the next five 
year plan. 
 
Continuing Education  
Focus on Children and Young Adults Institute provides a foundation of professional 
knowledge for public library staff who work in youth services and don’t have a Masters in 
Library Science. The Library and Information Science (LIS) Collection, consisting of 
professional books and serials, is available for loan to all Oregon library staff. 
Additionally, the State Library is proposing that funds be used for various online learning 
resources for Oregon library staff. 
 
Statistics 
The State Library is responsible for the collection and dissemination of the public library 
statistics.  The data gathered assists library directors, state and national groups with 
planning, assessment, and advocacy efforts.   
 
Youth Services 

The Statewide Summer Reading Program provides 
Oregon libraries with membership to the national 
Collaborative Summer Library Program (CSLP), 
summer reading manuals, summer reading certificates 

signed by the Governor, a summer reading workshop, the summer reading sweepstakes, 
and the Summer Learning, Libraries, and Lunch (SL3) program that keeps school 
libraries open in conjunction with the free summer lunch program. The Youth Services 
Consultant provides consulting services via in-person visits, email, and the phone 
primarily to Oregon public libraries to improve library youth services, with an emphasis on 
best practices and outcome based evaluation. 
 
Center for the Book 
The Oregon Intellectual Freedom 
Clearinghouse collects and reports data 
about challenges to library materials from 
all types of libraries in Oregon, provides 
content for the Intellectual Freedom 
Issues in Oregon: A News Database, 
and provides libraries with information and resources to address intellectual freedom 

41



issues upon request. Staff promote the Oregon State Library in the Pavilion of States at 
the annual National Book Festival.  
 
School Library Services 
The School Library Consultant provides consulting services via in-person visits, email, 
and the phone primarily to Oregon school library staff. This includes answering questions 
and communicating about best practices. The consultant also collects school library 
statistics and represents the State Library on the Oregon Association of School Libraries 
Board.  
 
Technology Services 
The Technology Development Consultant oversees various statewide technology-related 
programs (e.g. The Edge Initiative) and provides technology consulting services via in-
person visits and presentations, email, and phone calls in the areas of technology 
planning and development, and communications about 
E-rate.  
 
Answerland 
Answerland is a statewide cooperative information service that connects Oregon 
residents with library information professionals 24/7.  Patrons can communicate with a 
librarian by live chat, email, or text messaging. The service is staffed by Oregon partner 
libraries and volunteers, with after-hours chat coverage provided by a separate vendor. 
 
Edge Initiative 

The Edge Initiative is a groundbreaking, first-of-its-kind management and 
leadership tool, helping public libraries create a path for the continuous 
growth and development of their technology services. The Edge Toolkit (an 
easy-to-use suite of online tools) supports libraries in making strategic 
decisions, identifying areas for improvement, and provides an overview of 
current public services and community engagement. The State Library 

oversees the statewide use and implementation of the Edge Initiative throughout 
Oregon’s public libraries. 
 

Statewide Database Licensing 
Program (SDLP) 
 SDLP provides a suite of general periodicals and 
reference databases, currently contracted from 

Gale, and resources for skills building, test preparation, and job seeking 
from LearningExpress LLC to all legally established Oregon public 

libraries, non-profit academic libraries, schools, and tribal libraries. Training and 
marketing materials are available to program participants. An advisory committee 
representing each type of library provides feedback and support for the program.  
 
 
 
 

42



OSLIS 
OSLIS, or the Oregon School Library Information System, is a 
website designed to help K-12 students learn how to do 
research. The three sections provide access to information 
literacy resources, a tool for creating a bibliography in APA or 
MLA format, and the statewide databases. OSLIS is a project of 
the Oregon Association of School Libraries in partnership with 

the Oregon State Library. 
 
Sage Courier 
People in small, rural towns in Eastern and Central Oregon have access to books and 
resources from 77 libraries in 15 counties through the Sage Library System. LSTA 
subsidizes courier deliveries of books between system members so libraries can afford to 
share resources. 
 
Oregon Battle of the Books 
The Oregon Battle of the Books, or OBOB, is a statewide 
voluntary reading motivation and comprehension program in 
which student teams from the 3rd – 12 grades compete in 
quiz-style tournaments. OBOB is a project of the Oregon 
Association of School Libraries. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43



Attachment 2 
 

Library Services and Technology Act Council Bylaws 
Revised September 14, 2015 by LSTA Advisory Council 

 

Article I: Name 
 
The name of the organization shall be the Library Services and Technology Act Advisory Council 
(LAC). 

Article II: Object 
 
The LAC assists the Oregon State Library Board of Trustees in carrying out the Library Services 
and Technology Act (LSTA) Five-Year Oregon State Plan by reviewing project proposals and 
grant applications, making recommendations for funding both statewide and competitive grant 
projects, evaluating progress in accomplishing the State Plan, and advising the Board about other 
issues concerning the LSTA federal library grant program. The LAC will provide leadership to 
balance the funds directed to various LSTA goals and priorities.  

Article III: Members 

Section 1. Number and representation 
 

a. The LAC shall consist of thirteen regular members drawn from within Oregon. The 
thirteen positions shall include the following: 

b. Three members representing library users; 
c. Three members representing public libraries; 
d. Two members representing academic libraries; 
e. Two members representing underserved / underrepresented persons; 
f.  One member representing K-12 school libraries 
g. One member representing special libraries 
h. One member representing information technology  

Special consideration shall be given to see that geographic areas as well as different sizes 
and types of institutions are represented.   
 

i. Up to four staff of the Oregon State Library shall serve as ex-officio, non-voting members 
of the LAC.  
 

The Oregon State Library Board of Trustees may appoint additional temporary LAC members 
for special projects. These members' terms shall be specified at the time of appointment and 
shall not exceed three years. 

Section 2. Term 
 

A. The term of membership shall be three years or until a successor is elected. 
B. Members shall assume their duties at the first meeting of the calendar year and shall serve 

until the end of the calendar year of their third year on the LAC. 
C. Terms shall be staggered so that all members representing a specific group are not elected 

for three-year terms at the same time. 

44



 

Section 3. Nominations and elections 
 

A. Suggestions for new members shall be taken at the fall regular meeting. Suggestions shall 
also be solicited from the Oregon library community. 

B. Nominees shall be placed on ballots for consideration by the Oregon State Library Board 
of Trustees during their last regular meeting of the calendar year.  The candidate receiving 
the most votes for each position shall be elected to the LAC.  If there are two or more 
openings of same type of representative, they will be filled by the candidates with the most 
votes.  Council members will be appointed by the Oregon State Library Board.  The 
State Librarian in consultation with the Program Manager for Library Support and 
Development Services shall suggest nominees for vacant positions on the Council. 

Section 4. Resignation 
 

Any member desiring to resign shall submit his/her resignation in writing to the Chair and 
the State Librarian, who shall present it to the Oregon State Library Board for action.  A 
resignation shall be effective when received or at a subsequent effective date stated in the 
resignation. 
 

Section 5. Vacancies 
 Any vacancy on the LAC may, but need not be, filled by the Oregon State Library Board 
with the individual receiving the next largest number of votes in the most recent election for that 
position, if the election was held within a year of the declared vacancy.  If no election for the 
vacant position has been held within a year, a special election may, but need not, be held as 
quickly as practicable.  
 

A. The Council will request that the State Librarian fill any vacancies on the Council 
as quickly as possible. 

 
B. Members appointed to fill a vacancy will serve through the end of the term of the 

member they replace and will be eligible for one additional consecutive term.  

Section 6. Compensation 
 

A member may receive reimbursement or payment of reasonable expenses incurred by the 
member in connection with his or her services in the business of the LAC. 

Section 7. Conflict of interest and recusal 
 

A. Members shall abide by Oregon Conflicts of Interest law as delineated in ORS 244.120 to 
244.135. 
 

B. To ensure objectivity and eliminate possible bias, whether real or perceived, any member 
who is a staff member or current library board member at an institution that has submitted 
a grant proposal or application for consideration by the Council shall recuse himself or 
herself from the discussion and evaluation of the proposal or application. Members should 
declare in the meeting when they are recusing themselves. 
 
 

45



Article IV: Officers 

Section 1. Officers and duties 
 

The officers of the LAC shall be a Chair and a Vice-Chair. These officers shall perform 
the duties prescribed by these bylaws and those duties described for President and Vice-
President respectively in the parliamentary authority. 

Section 2. Nominations and election 
 

A. Nominations for Chair and Vice-Chair shall be taken from the floor during the regular fall 
meeting of the LAC. 

B. Elections shall be by voice vote. The candidate receiving a majority of votes cast shall be 
elected. 

Section 3. Term of office 
 

Officers shall be elected to serve for one year or until their successors are elected. Their 
term of office shall begin on January 1st. 

Section 4. Resignation 
 

An officer desiring to resign shall submit his/her resignation in writing to the Council and 
the State Librarian. A resignation shall be effective when received or at a subsequent 
effective date which is stated in the resignation. 

Section 5. Vacancies 
 

A vacancy in the Chair or Vice-chair position shall be filled by the council for the 
unexpired portion of the term for the vacant office at the next LAC meeting. 

 

Article V: Meetings 

Section 1. Regular meetings 
 

Regular meetings of the LAC shall be held twice annually, once in the spring and once in 
the fall. 

Section 2. Special meetings 
 

Special meetings may be called at the discretion of the Chair, Oregon State Library staff, 
or at the request of four LAC members. The purpose of the meeting shall be stated in the 
call. Except in case of emergencies, at least one week’s notice shall be given. 

Section 3. Virtual participation 
 

Members may participate in meetings via teleconference, videoconference, web 
conference, or other technologies allowing synchronous communication among members. 

Section 4. Quorum 
 

A majority of members shall constitute a quorum. 

46



Section 5. Minutes 
 

Minutes shall be prepared and distributed by Oregon State Library staff. 

Section 6. Meeting guidelines 
 

Meetings shall be held in accordance with Oregon Public Meetings law as delineated in 
ORS 192.610 to 192.710. 

 

Article VI: Committees 

Section 1. Statewide Database Licensing Advisory Committee 
 

A. The Statewide Database Licensing Advisory Committee (SDLAC) shall advise the LAC 
and the Oregon State Library on the Oregon Statewide Database Licensing Program (OAR 
543-060). Such advice may pertain but is not limited to request for proposal development 
and database product evaluation, ongoing database product assessment, and customer 
feedback. The SDLAC shall also advise the LAC on the appropriate percentage allocation 
of periodicals database costs to public, academic, and school libraries. 

B. Regular members shall consist of the following: 
a. Three public library representatives, one each from libraries serving populations 

over 100,000, between 25,000-100,000, and 25,000 or less; 
b. Three academic library representatives, one each from a community college, the 

Oregon University System a public academic institution, and private academic 
institution; 

c. One representative from a resource sharing system; 
d. One tribal library representative; and 
e. Two school library representatives. 

C. Ex-officio, non-voting members shall consist of the following: 
a. One representative from the LAC; 
b. One representative from the Orbis Cascade Alliance; 
c. One representative from the Organization for Educational Technology; and 
d. Up to four staff of the Oregon State Library. 

D. A call for nominations to the SDLAC shall be sent to the general Oregon library 
community early in the calendar year. SDLAC members shall be elected by ballot annually 
during the LAC’s spring meeting and shall serve terms of three years starting on July 1st. 
Terms shall be staggered so that members representing similar institutions are not elected 
to three-year terms at the same time. 

E. The SDLAC shall elect a Chair annually during its last regular meeting before July. The 
Chair shall be elected to serve for one year or until his/her successor is elected. 

F. The SDLAC shall meet a minimum of twice a year. Meetings shall abide by the rules 
delineated in Article V, § 2-6 of these bylaws. 

G. Procurements involving the SDLAC shall abide by all Oregon laws pertaining to Public 
Contracts and Purchasing as delineated in ORS 279. 
 

Section 2. Answerland Advisory Committee 
 

A. The Answerland Advisory Committee (AAC) shall advise the LAC and the Oregon 
State Library on the development, implementation, promotion and evaluation of 
Answerland. Such advice may pertain but is not limited to: general policy and budget 

47



issues; collaboration among provider libraries; service standards, benchmarks, and 
guidelines; promotion of Answerland to the public and the Oregon library 
community; staff training and best practices; evaluation and assessment of the 
program; and software and vendor selection. 

B. Regular members shall consist of the following:  
a. 6 - 10 voting members, drawn from all areas of the state and representing the 

public, school, and academic libraries that use or provide service for 
Answerland. Efforts will be made to keep a balance of representation from 
both type of library and geographic region. 

C. Ex-officio, non-voting members shall consist of the following: 
a. One representative from the LAC; 
b. Up to four staff of the Oregon State Library. 

D. A call for nominations to the AAC shall be sent to the general Oregon library 
community early in the calendar year. AAC members shall be confirmed by ballot 
annually during the LAC’s spring meeting and shall serve terms of two years starting 
on July 1st. After two years, members may choose to re-nominate themselves.  
Appointments of new Council members will be staggered to assure continuity.  

E. The AAC shall elect a Chair annually during its last regular meeting before July. The 
Chair shall be elected to serve for one year or until his/her successor is elected. 

F. The AAC shall meet a minimum of two times a year. Meetings shall abide by the 
rules delineated in Article V, §2-6 of these bylaws. 

G. Procurements involving the AAC shall abide by all Oregon laws pertaining to Public 
Contracts and Purchasing as delineated in ORS 279. 

 

Section 23. Special Committees 
 

A. Special committees may be appointed at the discretion of the LAC or Chair as necessary to 
assist the LAC in accomplishing its purposes. 

B. Special committee members need not be members of the LAC. 
C. The Chair shall be an ex-officio member of all committees. 

 

Article VII: Parliamentary authority 
 
The rules contained in the current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised shall govern 
the LAC in all cases in which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these 
bylaws and any special rules of order the LAC may adopt. 
 

Article VIII. Amendment of bylaws 
 
These bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting of the LAC by a two-thirds vote, provided 
that the amendment has been submitted in writing thirty days before the meeting. Amendments 
must also be approved by the Oregon State Library Board of Trustees

48



Attachment #3 
 

Proposal 
Number Applicant Proposal Title 

FFY 2016 Funds 
Requested Running total 

FFY 2017/2018 
Funds Requested total score 

  
Statewide Projects - 
Recommended            

16OBOB 

Oregon Library 
Association, on behalf of 
the OASL Oregon Battle of the Books $10,000 $10,000   9.91 

16OSLIS 

Oregon School Library 
Information System 
(OSLIS) 

Oregon Association of School 
Libraries, division of Oregon 
Library Association $30,000 $40,000   8.92 

16Sage Sage Library System Sage Courier $47,700 $87,700   8.67 

16eRate Oregon State Library 

E-rate Development: needs 
assessmentand recommendations 
for assisting libraries with new 
funding options $25,000 $112,700   0.00 

16ContEd Oregon State Library  

Continuing Education for library 
staff: online learning 
resources(webinars, self-paced 
courses, tutorials) for library staff $12,000 $124,700   0.00 

  

Statewide Database and 
Licensing Advisory 
Committee SDLAC request $50,000 $174,700   0.00 

  
Competetive Grants 
- Recommended           

16-1-PUL 
Pacific University/Pacific 
University Libraries 

Washington County Unified Oral 
Histories Project $103,442 $278,142   9.08 

16-2-
CCLN 

Curry County Library 
Network 

Curry County Library Network 
ILS Migration and Merger with 
Coos County Coastline Catalog $48,111 $326,253   9.00 

 

49



  

16-1-ORB Orbis Cascade Alliance 

Building Digital Collections 
Capacity for the Northwest: 
Metadata Cleanup, Training and 
Support $59,950 $386,203   8.58 

16-1-CCB 

Clackamas County 
Business and Community 
Services, on behalf of 
LINCC  

Libros for Oregon: Collections 
Connect Communities $3,891 $390,094 $12,845 8.50 

16-1-IPL 
Independence Public 
Library  Maker Space to Go $35,960 $426,054   8.50 

16-4-OLA 
Oregon Library 
Association 

Oregon School Library Standards 
Learning Objectives and Grade 
Level Alignment $20,350 $446,404 $11,200 8.50 

16-1-OHS Oregon Historical Society 

Reuniting Finley and Bohlman: 
The Collaborative Digitization of 
William L. Finley, Herman 
Bohlman, and Irene Finley 
Photographs and Documents[...] $66,705 $513,109   8.42 

16-5-NPL Newberg Public Library Early Literacy Kits $70,000 $583,109   8.25 

16-1-
OHSU 

Oregon Health & 
Sciences University 
Library 

Public Health in Oregon: 
Accessing Historical Data for 
Scientific Discovery, Year 2 $34,540 $617,649   7.17 

16-3-MCL 
Multnomah County 
Library 

Evaluating Listos Para el Kinder, 
Year 2 $39,619 $657,268   6.50 

16-1-MPL 
McMinnville Public 
Library Teen Gaming Night $14,084 $671,352   4.83 

 
  

 
 
 

50



  
Competitive Grants 
- Not Recommended            

16-1-
LBCC 

Linn-Benton Community 
College 

Library ebooks Decrease 
Textbook Costs at Oregon's 
Community Colleges $43,790 $715,142 $55,577 6.42 

16-1-SPL Springfield Public Library For Every Student, A Library $27,744 $742,886 $20,000 $10,000 6.42 

16-4-R2L Ready to Learn Coalition Ready 2 Learn, Year 4 $93,700 $836,586   5.75 

16-4-CPL Cornelius Public Library 

Another Spoke in the Hub: 
Expanding Early Learning 
Opportunities and Student Spaces $32,645 $869,231 $22,000 5.00 

16-1-JOS 
Josephy Center for Arts 
and Culture 

The Josephy Library - Policy, 
Assessment, and Exploring 
Digitization $20,425 $889,656   3.75 

16-4-
ELWC 

Early Learning 
Washington County 

Bridging Cultures - Growing 
Early Readers $100,000 $989,656 

$60,000  
$60,000 3.67 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

51



Attachment 4 
 
TO: LSTA Advisory Council 
FROM: Statewide Database Licensing Advisory Committee (SDLAC) 
DATE: April 15, 2016 
RE: LSTA Fund Allocation Proposal 
 
I. Recommendation  
 
The SDLAC recommends that the LSTA Council add an additional $50,000 to the FY2016 SDLP 
budget to enhance resources for the education community. The amount would be allocated as: 
 
• A $20,000 increase for the academic library subsidy administered by the Orbis Cascade 

Alliance to support journal article subscriptions. 
 

• A $30,000 increase to the existing Gale contract for the purchase of Science, Technology, 
Engineering and Math (STEM) reference titles within the Gale Virtual Reference Library 
(GVRL).  

 
II. Justification 
 
The SDLAC discussed approaches to expand content in current contracts so that it balances the 
needs of academic, K-12, and public library users. 
 
Academic Library Subsidy:  
 
The current subsidy of $50,000 addresses journal article deficiencies in Gale products by 
offsetting subscription costs for either Ebsco or ProQuest article databases. The subsidy’s 
“buying power” is diminished by the standard 3.5% inflationary increase for electronic resources. 
Keeping pace with inflation will keep the subsidy viable, especially for small academic libraries 
that need the most help. 
 
In addition to making this recommendation, the SDLAC also agreed to adjust the formula to 
make it more helpful to those libraries in most need. Previously, the subsidy was based on the 
total subscription cost for each individual library. The new formula provides a base allocation of 
40% to all participants, and the remaining 60% is a proportional allocation based on FTE and 
budget. This adjustment, based on similar models used by Orbis Cascade Alliance, will help to 
boost the subsidy’s usefulness while ensuring an equitable distribution to participating libraries.  
 
Adding STEM Titles to GVRL: 
 
STEM education titles are in great demand in K-12 and public library communities. STEM 
resources cover topics such as technology careers, coding languages, 3D printing, and robotics. 
School library budgets struggle to keep pace with the most current STEM content, since it is a 
rapidly growing and changing area. Providing this type of content through GVRL also has the 
advantage of providing unlimited, concurrent use to eBooks on STEM topics. Three of the 
committee members, representing K-12 and public libraries, have identified a selection of GVRL 
STEM titles that are available for statewide licensing.   

52



 
Attachment 5 

E-rate in Oregon 
 

E-rate (formally known as the Schools and Libraries Program of the Universal Service 
Fund) is a federal program that provides discounts to assist schools and public libraries 
in the United States to obtain affordable telecommunications and Internet access. It is 
one of four support programs funded through a Universal Service fee charged to 
companies that provide interstate and/or international telecommunications services. 
 
The Universal Service Administration Company is responsible for managing the 
application and review process, and oversees auditing. Libraries may request funding 
under two categories of service:  
 

• Category One services include Data Transmission Services and Internet Access 
(including fiber and construction), and Voice Services.  

• Category Two services include Internal Connections, Managed Internal 
Broadband Services, and Basic Maintenance of Internal Connections.  

Discounts for support depend on the category of service requested, the level of poverty 
and the urban/rural status of the appropriate school district. Discounts range from 20 
percent to 90 percent of the costs of eligible services.  
 
Generally, the E-rate application process can be confusing and/or time-consuming for 
staff; additionally, changes to the program from the Modernization Order (2014) and the 
move to a 100% online application process has meant that many public libraries who 
could (or should) participate are not. 
 
In 2015, approximately 22 public libraries in Oregon participated in E-rate and received 
just over $300,000 in E-rate funds. When compared to Colorado (with 114 libraries), 52 
libraries received E-rate funding for a total of $1.3 million, the State Library feels that 
the more Oregon public libraries could be participating in the E-rate program. A 
consultant has been hired to perform a needs assessment and written report, which will 
include specific recommendations and will be completed in early July. 
 
The State Library has proposed that $25,000 be budgeted to assist in 
implementing the forthcoming recommendations. These recommendations may 
include tasks such as partnering with Oregon Department of Education to fund a 
statewide consultant (under contract), develop and provide on-site training, and/or other 
similar activities.  

53



 Attachment 6 
 Continuing Education for Oregon Library Staff 

 
While the State Library has limited resources and staff to provide a fully developed 
Continuing Education program for Oregon library staff, we continue to look for 
opportunities to provide various solutions and resources. 
 
Once such opportunity is to partner with WebJunction, who provides: 

• 20+ live webinars, with certificates of attendance and quarterly usage reports  
• 150+ webinar archives, with certificates of attendance and usage reports 
• 24+ library-specific self-paced courses, with certificates of completion and usage 

reports 
• 50+ new website resources (articles, news, downloadables) on topics of high 

interest 
• 20+ issues of Crossroads enewsletter, spotlighting new and upcoming CE 

opportunities 
• Ongoing website maintenance, usability improvements, and content weeding 
• Continued design, testing, and scaling of innovative public library programs 

For the past few years, WebJunction has asked that State Libraries support to their 
efforts by contributing $7,000 (annually). While payment is not required for Oregon 
library staff to continue to have access to the above resources, the State Librarian and 
Library Support staff feel that it’s time for Oregon to do its part. 
 
Additionally, WebJunction has organized a group statewide purchase of Skillsoft, an 
online education service that provides 400 online, self-paced courses and over 8,000 
short instructional videos in the areas of communication/personal skills, customer 
service, leadership, management and various software/desktop applications.  
 
Access to these resources from Skillsoft for all Oregon library staff would be 
$5,000/year (and is not dependent on providing the $7,000 of support to WebJunction). 
State Library staff would like to recommend funding for both of these offerings 
from WebJunction for a total of $12,000. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54



Attachment 7 
 
TO: LSTA Advisory Council 
FROM: Statewide Database Licensing Advisory Committee (SDLAC) 
DATE: April 15, 2016 
RE: Centralized Portal Proposal 
 
I. Recommendation 
The SDLAC asks that the Oregon State Library endorse the concept of further 
investment in developing a centralized portal to serve all Oregon citizens. The intention is 
that a portal would supplement, and not supplant, methods that libraries and other 
organizations currently use to guide their patrons to statewide information resources. 

 
Suggested actions towards this end are: 
 

● OSL staff develop a project plan and budget (with input from SDLAC) which 
clarifies the role of Libraries of Oregon and lays out a path towards central portal 
development, management, and upkeep. 

 
● Present a plan to LSTA Council for consideration in FFY 2017 budget cycle.  

 
II. Justification for a centralized portal 
 

• Libraries of Oregon serves this role in a de facto manner; it is not currently 
designed to be used in statewide promotion and would need more robust design 
and support to function adequately in this manner. 

 
● Improves ease of access by serving as a single place to find state-funded 

information resources. This also facilitates Oregonians’ lifelong access to 
resources independent of library affiliation (i.e., school, public, academic, tribal, or 
unaffiliated). 

 
● Utilizes a consistent authentication protocol (Geo IP), which removes 

logon/password barriers for citizens while also providing data on geographic 
usage. 

 
● Provides an opportunity for OSL marketing under a single brand to promote the 

value of Oregon libraries for all citizens.  
 

● Increases visibility of resources by providing another access point for citizens. For 
example, local libraries decide which licensed resources to link to through their 
web pages. A statewide portal could result in higher usage of resources and 
provide a more complete picture of their usefulness statewide. 

 
 
 
 

55



III. Constituent Feedback 
 
SDLAC has had discussions about the pros and cons of a centralized portal over the 
past few years. One potential concern was the impact on local library statistics for 
database use. SDLAC believes that the advantage of instant access to the databases 
outweighs the potential impact on local library statistics.  
 

Public Libraries: 
The question about a central portal was raised at the Fall 2015 Public Library 
Directors Meeting. Overall there was support for a consistent platform like a 
central portal. They recommended that any such portal have links back to local 
library websites. So, instead of drawing traffic away, it could potentially increase 
the exposure of their sites.  
 
School Libraries: 
The impact on the school libraries’ portal, OSLIS, was discussed. OSLIS is more 
than an access point to databases, since it has information literacy and research 
resources. However, not all Oregon schools promote or use OSLIS. A centralized 
portal would offer a way for those students, as well as home schooled students, to 
access the licensed resources. Other states have central portals which cross link 
to supporting services, like OSLIS and Answerland. Miranda Doyle, one of two K-
12 school library representatives on the SDLAC, commented that her students 
would be attracted to an easy to use, central search box like those provided by 
other states. Eliminating the need for passwords when the portal is used within 
Oregon would also benefit students and teachers. 

 
IV. Recommended features and resources 
 
Required or strongly desired features: 
 

● User-centered design 
● Responsive design for display on multiple devices 
● Prominent search box, if possible, for single search of databases from the same 

vendor.  
● Uses Geo IP authentication, plus an alternative method when Internet Service 

Providers do not use local state IP addresses. 
 
The portal offers OSL an opportunity to curate statewide information resources and tools. 
Potential resources to include: 
 

● Statewide databases through SDLP 
● Answerland 
● Local Library finders: 

■ http://librariesoforegon.org/node/18 
■ https://www.worldcat.org/libraries 

● State of Oregon Law Library resources (e.g., Legal Information Reference Center) 

56

http://librariesoforegon.org/node/18
https://www.worldcat.org/libraries
http://www.oregon.gov/soll/pages/index.aspx


● Links to OSLIS, WorkSource Oregon, Oregon Educator Network, Oregon State 
Archives, Oregon Encyclopedia, Oregon History Project, Historic Oregon 
Newspapers 
 

V. Centralized portal examples 
 
Existing Libraries of Oregon: http://librariesoforegon.org/ 
Oregon prototype from Gale: http://galesites.com/state/oregon/ 
  
Other States 
Florida: http://www.flelibrary.org/  
Idaho: http://lili.org/ 
Michigan : http://mel.org/ 
New Mexico: http://www.elportalnm.org/ 
Tennessee: http://tntel.tnsos.org/ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

57

http://oslis.org/
http://www.worksourceoregon.org/
http://www.oregonednet.org/
http://sos.oregon.gov/archives/Pages/records.aspx
http://sos.oregon.gov/archives/Pages/records.aspx
http://www.oregonencyclopedia.org/
http://www.oregonhistoryproject.org/
http://oregonnews.uoregon.edu/
http://oregonnews.uoregon.edu/
http://librariesoforegon.org/
http://galesites.com/state/oregon
http://galesites.com/state/oregon
http://www.flelibrary.org/
http://lili.org/
http://mel.org/
http://www.elportalnm.org/
http://tntel.tnsos.org/


 
Talking Book and Braille Advisory Council 

Recommendations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

58



 
Agenda Item 
Recommendation of the Talking Book and Braille Library Advisory Council. 
 
Background and Summary 
The Talking Book and Braille Library Advisory Council met at the State Library on 
May 19, 2016 and adopted the following recommendation to the State Library 
Board. 
 
The Talking Book Advisory Council considered and endorsed an Annual Donation 
Expenditure Plan for 2016-17. 

 
Attached is the 2016-2017 Donation Expenditure Plan (Attachment A) and 
Expenditure Fund Cash Flow Analysis for 2013-2018 (Attachment B) that the staff 
has proposed and the Advisory Council endorsed.    
 
In addition to covering salary costs of the Fund Development Coordinator and the 
Office Assistant, the Plan includes funding for the League of Women Voters’ 
Guide, the large print calendar, summer reading program, patron centric cartridges 
and outreach. 
 
Recommendations of the State Librarian 
The State Librarian supports the recommendations of the Talking Book and Braille 
Library Advisory Council.   
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59



 
Attachment A 

 
Talking Book & Braille Library Annual Donation Expenditure 

Plan for Program Enhancements and Solicitation 
July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 

 
 

This plan proposes expenditures from Talking Books expendable 
donation funds accumulated from solicitations, that is, donations Talking 
Books requested, and designated as available for spending on 
enhancement projects, solicitation costs, outreach and volunteer expenses.    

The Talking Book and Braille Library Endowment Fund policy requires 
that other donations such as undesignated bequests, trusts, and annuities 
received that are not requested or designated are credited to the Talking 
Books Library Endowment Fund.  

The grand total of requests is listed first followed by numbered 
categories that are subtotaled. Individual expenditure amounts follow in 
each subtotal category.  The first column is 2015-16 budgeted expenditures 
and the second column is 2016-17 budgeted expenditures.   

 
Grand total $98,900 

     2015-16 total $137,700 
 
1.  Customer Service Enhancements   $32,000 $44,300 
a. Large print calendar     $13,500  $13,500   
Continue the printing and distribution of the large print 12 month calendars 
for the program’s customers.   
 
b. Oregon Talking Book Project      $5,000 $5,000     
This would provide professional digital recording and narration to enhance 
the Oregon Collection.  We may continue working with the New Mexico 
State Library or the Idaho State Library on this project, using their facilities 
and narrators or develop a partnership with local recording studios. 
 
c. NFB-NEWSLINE          $12,000 $12,000  

NFB-NEWSLINE  is a service offered by the National Federation for the 
Blind that allows blind and low vision people to call on the telephone and 
access over 200 newspapers across America.  The Oregonian, Eugene 
Register Guard, Statesman Journal and AP of Oregon are part of the 

60



service. 
 
d.  League of Women Voter’s Guide   $2,500 $2,500  

In partnership with the League of Women Voters of Oregon, provide the 
Non-partisan League of Women Voter’s Guide in cartridge, CD, large print 
and Braille to the Talking Book patrons. 
 
e. Descriptive Videos      $200  $300 
To purchase newly released descriptive videos.  Descriptive videos describe 
key visual elements such as settings, characters or action of the movie. 
 
f. Summer Reading Program    $500  $1,000   
Support the summer reading program with purchasing prizes and giveaways 
and printing costs. 
 
g. Library Cards       $1,000 $0  
The design, printing and distribution of library cards to Talking Books’ 
student patrons.  The upkeep of this project will be covered by state funds. 
 
h. Patron Centric Cartridges    $0  $10,000 
Patron centric cartridges will allow Talking Books to customize a cartridge 
for a specific patron.   This amount will cover the one time startup costs of a 
dedicated computer, hard drive storage for the audio books and set up fees 
with the ILS vendor.   
 
2.  Solicitation Costs     $44,100 $47,100 
 
a. Printed Materials for direct mail     $7,000 $7,000   
We send two direct mail solicitations out every year. This budget item covers 
letterhead, envelopes, postage and mailing services for these.  
  
 
b. Fund Development Database      $1,500 $1,500  
Continue the annual maintenance agreement to assure that we have the 
technical support and regular updates for the software. 
 
 
c. Office Assistant        $5,000 $6,000   

61



Continuation of the part-time office assistant to handle data and gift entry 
and other administrative tasks.   
 
 
d. Fund Development Coordinator   $32,600 $32,600  
Support for the Volunteer/Fund Development Coordinator.   This position is 
responsible for coordinating the appeals, processing donations and 
bequests, and overseeing planned giving.  This also covers the 
administration costs of the donation program. 
 
 
3.  Outreach to new patrons    $5,000 $5,500 
 
a. Outreach         $5,000 $5,500 
This pays for costs associated with participation in public outreach events 
such as conferences and supporting materials. 
 
 
4. Volunteer Expenses       $2,000 $2,000 
 
Talking Books is highly dependent on volunteer assistance.  The fees in this 
category pay for direct expenses related to the volunteer program as well as 
events to recognize and motivate volunteers.   
 
a. Parking           $1,500  $1,500 
Parking key cards, parking space rental and bus passes for Talking Books 
volunteers 
 
b. Recognition events        $  500 $500 
Talking Books share of overall volunteer recognition costs and activities   
in Talking Books to recognize volunteers.  
 
5.  Core Services Support    $47,900 $0____ 
 
a. State Library Specialist 1    $47,900 $0 
Circulation/Equipment technician is responsible for the daily circulation of 
audio books and equipment.  As of July 1, 2016, the costs of this position 
will be covered by state funds.   
 
 
May, 2016 
 
 

62



Attachment B 
 
Talking Books’ Expenditure Fund Cash Flow Analysis 
(Note: The analysis does not include the Talking Books’ Endowment Fund) 
 
 

FY 13/14 
Beginning balance July 1, 2013      $175,233 
Donation revenue to Expenditure Fund       103,219 
Expense for Fund Development Position       (29,208) 
Expense for enhancements/solicitation costs       (49,518) 
Expense for core services support        (63,483) 
Ending balance June 30, 2014       $136,243 
 

FY 14/15 
Beginning balance July 1, 2014      $136,243 
Donation revenue to Expenditure Fund       111,479 
Expense for enhancements/solicitation costs       (77,408) 
Expense for core services support        (46,283) 
Ending balance June 30, 2015                $124,031 
 

FY 15/16  
Beginning balance July 1, 2015      $124,031 
Adjusting entry for 2013-15 Biennium         74,500 
Estimated donation revenue to Expenditure Fund               105,000 
Estimated expense for enhancements/solicitation costs                   (80,000) 
Estimated cost for core services support       (45,000) 
Estimated ending balance June 30, 2016      $178,531 
 
FY 16/17 
Estimated beginning balance July 1, 2016       $178,531  
Estimated donation revenue to Expenditure Fund       105,000 
Estimated expense for enhancements/solicitation costs      (98,900) 
Estimated Ending balance June 30, 2017       $184,631 
 
FY 17/18 
Estimated beginning balance July 1, 2017       $184,631  
Estimated donation revenue to Expenditure Fund       105,000 
Estimated expense for enhancements/solicitation costs      (89,000) 
Estimated Ending balance June 30, 2018       $200,631 

 
Update 5/5/2016 

 
 

63



 
Miscellaneous 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

64



 

65



Jackson County library contractor takes heat 
Officials question LS&S oversight, employee pay and corporate profits 
 

|  
  
Claire Wolber shelves movies Thursday at the Jacksonville library branch, part of a countywide 
library system managed by a private contractor. Mail Tribune/ Denise Baratta 
 
By Damian Mann  
Mail Tribune  
 
Posted May. 12, 2016 at 6:38 PM  

A contract to operate Jackson County’s 15 libraries came under fire Thursday over charges that a 
private equity firm’s control has created excessive employee oversight and could stunt workers' 
already low wages. 
“I’m not only embarrassed that we pay $10 an hour, I am ashamed,” said Cathy Shaw, a library 
district budget committee member. 
Shaw and other library officials expressed unease over the contract with Library Systems and 
Services, formerly known as LSSI, which manages all 15 branches and came under control of 
Argosy Private Equity in 2015. 
“LS&S seems to be an animal of a different stripe,” said Shaw, a former Ashland mayor who 
helped orchestrate voter approval of the library district in 2014. “Thirty cents of every dollar goes 
to the profits of the corporation that wants to get as much out of the county and taxpayers as 
possible.” 
Shaw criticized LS&S’s new president as being more interested in generating profits for the equity 
firm than in providing library services. LS&S officials said that LSSI was also operated by a 
private equity firm. Shaw said she had a good working relationship with LSSI when the library 
district was formed in 2014. 
Shaw conceded workers may have received similar pay under LSSI but said it’s time the library 
district insisted on a living wage so employees don’t have to fall back on government-run 
programs to pay for housing and food. 

66

http://mailtribune.mycapture.com/mycapture/remoteimage.asp?image=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.mailtribune.com%2Fstoryimage%2FMM%2F20160512%2FNEWS%2F160519834%2FAR%2F0%2FAR-160519834.jpg%26MaxW=580&source=jsapi&backurl=http://www.mailtribune.com%2Fapps%2Fpbcs.dll%2Farticle%3FAID%3D%2F20160512%2FNEWS%2F160519834&notes=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.mailtribune.com%2Fstoryimage%2FMM%2F20160512%2FNEWS%2F160519834%2FAR%2F0%2FAR-160519834.jpg&credit=Mail%20Tribune
http://mailtribune.mycapture.com/mycapture/remoteimage.asp?image=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.mailtribune.com%2Fstoryimage%2FMM%2F20160512%2FNEWS%2F160519834%2FAR%2F0%2FAR-160519834.jpg%26MaxW=580&source=jsapi&backurl=http://www.mailtribune.com%2Fapps%2Fpbcs.dll%2Farticle%3FAID%3D%2F20160512%2FNEWS%2F160519834&notes=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.mailtribune.com%2Fstoryimage%2FMM%2F20160512%2FNEWS%2F160519834%2FAR%2F0%2FAR-160519834.jpg&credit=Mail%20Tribune
mailto:dmann@mailtribune.com


Budget committee member Edwin Budge said libraries often turn to companies such as LS&S 
when they get in trouble financially. Jackson County signed a contract with LSSI in 2007 after it 
shut down all 15 branches and then reopened them six months later. 
Most well-run library systems wouldn’t consider a contract with LS&S, Budge said. 
“There are 9,000 communities that say they wouldn’t touch LS&S with a 10-foot pole,” he said. 
“We need to move away from the LS&S contract and back to the way it is run in most 
jurisdictions in the country.” 
The committee also recommended a $15.7 million 2016-17 budget, which has an ending fund 
balance of close to $5 million. The LS&S contract is for almost $5 million. Part of the budget calls 
for increased spending on maintenance for the branches, which includes painting, a roof and 
carpeting. 
A five-year capital improvement budget is almost $1.2 million, with the biggest single expense 
being $250,000 for replacement of the heating and air-conditioning system at the Ashland branch. 
The library district wants to make sure the branches are in top condition when they are turned over 
to the district from the county in 2020. 
The committee recommended keeping the district’s property tax rate at 52 cents per $1,000 of 
assessed property value. The committee’s recommendations will be sent to the library district 
board for adoption. 
Shaw recommended using part of the district revenues to augment LS&S employee wages to 
ensure workers are getting a living wage. Shaw said that even if the library district managed to 
break free of LS&S, current employees of that company couldn't be hired back because of 
noncompeting agreements. 
Library board members have looked at ways to get out of the five-year contract, but they said it 
would be difficult. “We looked at terminating it, but they (LS&S) turned it down,” said Maureen 
Swift, a board member. 
She said the new library district was under pressure by Jackson County to sign a contract with 
LS&S, unaware at the time that it was a five-year contract instead of a year-to-year contract. The 
library district formed in 2014 but still operated under an arrangement with the county for about a 
year. To this day, the county provides some services, including routine maintenance of the 
buildings. 
“The county was threatening a shutdown of the libraries if we didn’t sign the contract,” Swift said. 
Board member Carol Doty said she is concerned that LS&S employees are being “shadowed” by 
upper management since the takeover by Argosy. 
“We get this message that our employees can’t be trusted,” she said. 
Cindy Delanty, regional support manager for LS&S, said her company has hired more 
administrative support to help employees. 
“Where did you get the impression that we’re shadowing our employees?” she said. 
Chris Ourand, LS&S marketing and communications director, said the company has developed a 
methodology to come up with effective management plans for the library systems under its 
operations. 
“One person’s shadowing is another person’s training,” Ourand said. 
He provided surveys that indicate a high-level of customer satisfaction with the library system in 
Jackson County. He noted that in 2007 the library system had 50,000 cardholders and today that 
number is 133,000. 

67



LSSI and now LS&S has had an almost 10-year relationship with Jackson County libraries, Paul 
Colangelo, president and chief operations officer for LS&S, said in a phone interview. 
He said the company was previously owned by another private equity firm, so there always has 
been a private equity firm in the mix. He said Argosy has improved services and streamlined 
operations so that employees can spend more time with customers. 
Earlier this year, LS&S received “glowing” remarks from library district board members Swift 
and Monica Weyhe, Colangelo said 
“I’m kind of puzzled as to why they want to get out of the contract,” he said. “We’re open to 
ongoing communications on how to expand what we’ve done.” 
He declined to divulge the average wage paid at libraries in Jackson County, though he did say 
some part-time workers get minimum wage. In Oregon, the minimum wage is $9.25 an hour. 
He said wages depend on the position and experience of the individual employee. 
Colangelo also declined to disclose LS&S profit margins on its library operations. 
The existing contract with the library district could be modified to give employees wage increases, 
if that’s what the library board wants to do, Colangelo said. 
“It’s a simple contract modification,” he said. “We could simply say, 'Allocate 'X' dollars to 
wages.' ” 
Reach reporter Damian Mann at 541-776-4476 or dmann@mailtribune.com. Follow him on 
Twitter at www.twitter.com/reporterdm. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

68

mailto:dmann@mailtribune.com
http://www.mailtribune.com/article/20160512/NEWS/160519834/0/www.twitter.com/reporterdm


 
Correspondence 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

69



From: Shawn Range  
Sent: Wednesday, April 13, 2016 7:56 AM 
To: AllStateLibrary  
Subject: Thank You IT 
 
Thank you Brad and Chris.  
 
Our IT staff stayed quite late last night to make changes to our switches.  These were 
changes DAS had failed to let us know were required for the phone change over.  
 
We are just waiting for IBM to finish placing phones, then the lines will be ported over. 
IBM has just arrived and will resume placing phones soon.  
 
Thank you Chris and Brad for making these last minute changes to ensure our phone 
transition can take place.  
 
Shawn Range 
Oregon State Library 
 
 
Sent: Thursday, April 14, 2016 10:46 PM 
To: Talking Books  
Subject: I so enjoy Talking Books 
 
I am enjoying every Talking Book I get.  I listen to them while I 
work around the house and cook (a slow chore because of my 
eyesight - but I love to cook).  AND I love to listen to so many 
various books. 
  
I've learned a lot about some of the health issues our family has.  
And, of course, just for fun mysteriy stories, etc.   
  
In addition to all the rest of the "list" that I have with you, I'd love to 
have anything written by Scott Turrow or John Grisham.   
  
Mostly, I just want to tell you how wonderful it is to be able to 
"read" again. 
  
Thank you!!! 
  
Kay Fierro 
 
 
 

70



From: Ann Scheppke  
Sent: Wednesday, April 27, 2016 5:01 PM 
To: Arlene Weible  
Subject: Thinking money 
 
Hi, Arlene--Thought you might be interested to know that Salem Public Library was awarded the ALA 
Thinking Money financial literacy traveling exhibit. It should roll into town at the end of August and will stay 
through the beginning of October.  As a part of the deal, I get to go to Orlando for training and the library 
gets money for programs.   
  
I don't think I would have applied for the grant had I not attended the financial literacy training you 
coordinated at Multnomah County Library last fall. Not only did it provide the motivation to apply, all of the 
lovely handouts you and your contacts provided will also give me a jump start on programming. Thank 
you! 
  
Ann 
 
Ann Scheppke 
Reference Librarian, Salem Public Library 
 
 
From: HUDDLESTON Justin * DAS 
Sent: Wednesday, April 27, 2016 9:04 AM 
To: Kate McGann 
Cc: Jerry Curry 
Subject: RE: Safari getting signed up 

Good morning Kate, 
  
I just got in for the day and I just listened to both of your messages. You and Jerry have shown me 
amazing customer service from the State Library. I have also received the Safari email, and am able to go 
through and search for books online. This is an amazing product. Again, thank you for your help in getting 
me set up on my end of things. 
  
 
From: Margie Harrison  
Sent: Thursday, April 28, 2016 12:16 PM 
To: AllStateLibrary <AllOSL@oslmail.osl.state.or.us> 
Subject: OrDoc Salute to Angie & Sarah! 
 
In preparation for the big migration from our repository to the new Digital Asset Management 
System, Angie and Sarah categorized over 10,000 OrDocs. They opened and edited 
approximately 10,500 records in less than 2 weeks’ time. They’re placing OrDocs into state 
agency sub-collections within the new system based off of the OrDoc classification system. I am 
amazed at the amount of work they have accomplished in such a short period of time. Kudos to 
Angie and Sarah for making this happen!   
 
Margie Harrison 
Program Manager 
Government Information and Library Services 
Oregon State Library  
 

71



From: CAICEDO Luis A * OED   
Sent: Thursday, April 28, 2016 12:46 PM 
To: docdelivery  
Subject: RE: Requested loan has arrived 
 
Thank you, 
 
Your services are really outstanding. 
 
Best to you, 
 
Alex Caicedo 
 
Bilingual Business and Employment Specialist 
Eugene, OR 
 
 
From: MaryKay Dahlgreen  
Sent: Thursday, April 28, 2016 2:20 PM 
To: AllStateLibrary 
Subject: Take your child to work day activities at the State Library 
 
Thanks to everyone at the State Library who participated in today’s take your child to 
work day activities. Every division was involved and provided state library related 
activities for the parents and children of state agency staff who attended. There were two 
sessions planned but we had so many state agency staff asking to participate that we 
added another session.  I heard good things from the parents and the children seemed to 
enjoy themselves very much.  
 
This is a great example of staff demonstrating our core value of strong community by 
connecting to achieve mutual success! 
 
Thanks, 
MaryKay 
 
 
 

72



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

73



 
 
From: Alice Laviolette  
Sent: Friday, April 29, 2016 12:30 PM 
Subject: Congratulations Answerland! 
 
Congratulations Tamara!  Answerland made the Capitol’s Facebook page today! 
-Alice 
 
https://www.facebook.com/OregonCapitol/ 
 
Sent: Friday, April 29, 2016 12:23 PM 
To: Alice Laviolette   
Subject: Facebook 
 
Hi Alice! 
 
Please share -- the Capitol posted a status today on Facebook about Answerland.  
 
Have a great weekend.  
 
Stacy 
 

 
 
 

74

https://www.facebook.com/OregonCapitol/


 
 
From: IRWIN Todd  
Sent: Friday, April 29, 2016 2:32 PM 
To: MaryKay Dahlgreen   
Subject: Thank you 
 
Director Dahlgreen 
 
I wanted to express to you and your staff what a fun experience my three daughters and I 
had yesterday during the Take Your Child to Work activities.  It was a highlight for them 
and me.  Everyone thought the microfilm stations were great and my eldest daughter 
wants to come back and look for information about our family who came over on the 
Oregon Trail. 
 
I hadn’t been to the State Library since my Willamette days over 20 years ago, and my 
impression of it from that time was opposite to what we experienced yesterday with the 
warm and solicitous interaction we received.  
 
I was very interested to learn of the OSLIS system. We are home educating parents, 
whose children visit our local library weekly, and we hadn’t heard of this resource before 
yesterday. We will be sure to share OSLIS with our home school networks so that more 
Oregon families will be made aware of its existence.  
 
Thank you as well for allowing us a peek into your office, it is truly a gem. We look 
forward to signing up for a visit next year.   
 
Best Regards, 
 
Todd Irwin  
 
 
From: Robby Pietz  
Sent: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 8:59 AM 
To: AllStateLibrary  
Subject: No more juvenile collection 
 
I would like to give a big thank you to Max for helping me box up and ship the Juvenile 
collection (56 boxes) to its new home at the University of Oregon.  
 
Robby 
 
 

From: Lourdes Aceves  
Sent: Tuesday, May 10, 2016 11:34 AM 
To: Darci Hanning 
Subject: [2015 Edge State Library Program] Summary of Edge Spring Conference Activity in Denver, 
Houston, Bend, and Tulsa! 

 

75



Project: 2015 Edge State Library Program 

Company: Urban Libraries Council  
 

 

Lourdes Aceves posted a new message: 
Summary of Edge Spring Conference Activity in Denver, Houston, Bend, and 

Tulsa!  

State Library Partners –  
 
I know it’s been awhile since I provided an update and I thank you for your patience. 
April was a busy conference month for Edge and both Kristi and I were in the field as 
were many of you, which is why we did not schedule a peer call. The Edge Team was 
getting ready for the PLA Conference in Denver, Colorado last month and today, we’re 
excited to provide a summary of it and the three other conferences that featured Edge 
sessions and/or hosted a booth.  
 
… 
 
Oregon Library Association (OLA) Conference – Bend, Oregon 
I was thrilled to finally meet Mary Kay Dahlgreen, Darci Hanning, and the OSL staff as 
well as so many of our Oregon libraries at the OLA Conference! The Edge booth was 
right near the exhibit hall entrance, which ensured a steady stream of traffic. I hosted the 
booth along with Darci Hanning of OSL and we worked shoulder to shoulder to engage 
as many Oregon libraries as we could. 
 
A once-an-hour drawing to win Ed G. (our newest and cutest mascot) was wildly popular. 
I’d have every hourly winner take a picture with Ed G. in front of the Edge sign at the 
booth and then Tansy would Tweet it out. The libraries loved being featured on Twitter! 
 
The Edge session, “Using the Edge Toolkit to Tell Your Story” had capacity for 30 people 
and we had 27 people attend – almost a full house! The libraries had good questions and 
loved the video we created especially for this presentation where we interviewed a library 
director on her use of the Edge Executive Tool. Several people visited the booth after the 
session to say how much they enjoyed the session. 
 
… 
 
Thank you to all of you for working with the Edge Team as well as independently to 
engage your libraries in assessing and strengthening their technology and ultimately, 
improving the quality of life of the communities they serve.  
 
Have a terrific week! 
Lourdes 
 

 

76



 

 
 

From: Martha Gongora   
Sent: Tuesday, May 10, 2016 9:15 AM 
To: Erich Peppler  
Subject: Summer reading  
 
Eric was so excited when I read to him about the summer reading program and he said that he can 
wait to start recording his reading hours that's for this wonderful opportunity for all have a great 
day Sent from my iPhone 
 
 
From: Margie Harrison  
Sent: Thursday, May 12, 2016 12:33 PM 
To: allGovernmentServices  
Subject: Kudos to Claire for a great InfoGuide 
 
Hi all, 
 
I received yet another kudos this morning about the subscriptions database InfoGuide! As many 
of you know, I’ve been using the InfoGuide that Claire developed for us to talk with agencies 
about subscriptions approval.  
 
I am in the process of gathering subscription information from liaisons, and I sent subscription 
liaisons a link to the guide.  It includes a spreadsheet that they can download, add titles, and 
send to me as an email attachment.  I also used the InfoGuide in a presentation at a Business 
Managers meeting.  
 
I’ve heard nothing but great things about the InfoGuide. The business managers loved the 
simplicity of a link rather than an attachment of a presentation, or handouts. This morning one 
of the liaisons called to tell me how much she appreciated the InfoGuide.  She said it made the 
subscriptions process really easy to understand.  
 
If you haven’t seen it, take a look. libguides.osl.state.or.us/subscription_database 
 
Thanks, Claire!  LibGuides has taught me a new way to present information, and it has turned 
out to be a very practical tool for disseminating and presenting information.    
 
Margie  
 
Margie Harrison 
Program Manager 
Government Information and Library Services 
Oregon State Library  
 
 
 

77

http://libguides.osl.state.or.us/subscription_database

	State Library
	Library Services and Technology Act Council Bylaws
	Article I: Name
	Article II: Object
	Article III: Members
	Section 1. Number and representation
	Section 2. Term
	Section 3. Nominations and elections
	Section 4. Resignation
	Section 6. Compensation
	Section 7. Conflict of interest and recusal
	Section 1. Officers and duties
	Section 2. Nominations and election
	Section 3. Term of office
	Section 4. Resignation
	Section 5. Vacancies

	Article V: Meetings
	Section 1. Regular meetings
	Section 2. Special meetings
	Section 3. Virtual participation
	Section 4. Quorum
	Section 5. Minutes
	Section 6. Meeting guidelines

	Article VI: Committees
	Section 1. Statewide Database Licensing Advisory Committee
	Section 23. Special Committees

	Article VII: Parliamentary authority
	Article VIII. Amendment of bylaws
	July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017

	Grand total $98,900
	Jackson County library contractor takes heat
	Sent: Thursday, April 14, 2016 10:46 PM To: Talking Books  Subject: I so enjoy Talking Books
	From: Ann Scheppke  Sent: Wednesday, April 27, 2016 5:01 PM To: Arlene Weible  Subject: Thinking money
	From: HUDDLESTON Justin * DAS Sent: Wednesday, April 27, 2016 9:04 AM To: Kate McGann Cc: Jerry Curry Subject: RE: Safari getting signed up
	From: CAICEDO Luis A * OED
	From: IRWIN Todd  Sent: Friday, April 29, 2016 2:32 PM To: MaryKay Dahlgreen   Subject: Thank you
	From: Lourdes Aceves  Sent: Tuesday, May 10, 2016 11:34 AM To: Darci Hanning Subject: [2015 Edge State Library Program] Summary of Edge Spring Conference Activity in Denver, Houston, Bend, and Tulsa!
	Lourdes Aceves posted a new message:Summary of Edge Spring Conference Activity in Denver, Houston, Bend, and Tulsa! 
	From: Martha Gongora
	From: Margie Harrison  Sent: Thursday, May 12, 2016 12:33 PM To: allGovernmentServices  Subject: Kudos to Claire for a great InfoGuide



